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Group strategic report for the year ended 30 September 2021
The directors present their strategic report for the group and the parent company for the year ended 30 September 2021.

Principal activities and review of the business

Almac Group Limited is a private limited company incorporated and registered in the United Kingdom and limited by shares.
The company is domiciled in Northern Ireland. The parent company’s registered office is detailed on page 1.

The parent company is a holding investment company and it also provides significant operational and other support functions to
the Almac group of compames

The activities of the group extend across drug discovery, API development and manufacture, analytical services, diagnostic
services, pharmaceutical development, all areas of clinical trials support, interactive response technologies and the manufacture
- and commercialisation of phannaceutical products. The group provides world-class integrated research and development support

.and an unparalleled range | of services to customers, including the market leaders, within the pharmaceutlcal and biotechnology
sectors . : .

The group’s strategy is to create shareholder value by investing for the long term and by positioning the group to be the leader
in its chosen markets. The performance for the year under review reflects further sustained progress towards achieving this long
term objective and at the same time maintaining the group’s strong balance sheet.

Performance and position

The Group’s profit before income tax for the year is £80,782,394 (2020: £63,549,574). The Group’s profit after income tax is
£64,205,719 (2020: £52,866,741). Net assets of the group are £549,028,952 (2020: £489,602,133).

The Company’s loss after income tax is £8,243, 347 (2020: loss of £5,495,056). Net assets of the Company are £152,702, 010,
(2020: £160,945,357). :

The Group’s strategy of creating shareholder value through continued investment helped deliver an improvement in profitability

.in 2021. This was achieved across a range of business units within the group by a combination of revenue growth and margin
improvement including a better mix of business from higher margin revenue streams. The Covid-19 pandemic presented many
operational challenges across the group again in 2021 but also provided a range of commercial opportunities across our Clinical
Services, Technologies and Sciences divisions supporting our customers through the clinical development of Covid-19 vaccines
and treatments.

Investment in Almac’s global footprint has diversified our business, strengthened our customer proposition and supported growth
in key segments. In 2021 this was demonstrated with robust growth in our businesses in Ireland and the US. The improvement
in the underlying trading performance of the Group along w1th sound workmg capital management produced strong net cash
generation for the year.

No dividends were paid in 2021 or up until the date of signing the financial statements, with all net profits being retained, thus
growing the.net asset base of the group.

Key performance indicators (“KPIs”)
The directors consider that, given the nature of the group’s opcrations, the KPIs are growth in revenue, earnings before interest,

tax, depreciation, amortisation and research and development expenditure (“EBITDA before research and development
expenditure”) and employee numbers. These are reviewed.on a regular basis within the operating companiés.

2021 2020
Growth in revenue’ o . +9% +6%
EBITDA: before research and development ei(penditure ’ : £136,650,197 £112,556,286

Employee numbers . : . 5,783 5,466
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the business and the execution of the group and company’s strategy (refer to page 8 and 9 of the Directors’
Report) are subject to a number of risks. The principal issues are discussed below:
Competition .
r N :

The Group operates in competitive global markets.and aims to provide excellent products and services at competitive prices.
These factors are continually reviewed in each business to ensure appropriate margins are being realised and that the quality of -
service and products is of the highest standard and consistently improving. Quality systems are maintained according to current
good manufacturing practice and international quality standards.

Underlying market growth trends are positive, and we enjoy many longstanding customer relationshrps which we continue to
nurture. .

-To maintain our compentive position and provide capacity for future growth the group continues to invest in additional facrhties
new technologies and service offerings. .

Employees

The group’s performance is largely dependent on its staff and therefore the reliance on key individuals together with the
continuing ability to attract people with relevant experience and skills are important factors in ensuring the success of the Group.
To mitigate these risks, the Group has training, learning and development programmes in place and has implemented a number
of incentive schemes linked to the group’s performance that are designed to retain key individuals and provide attractive long-
term career opportunities. We continue to evolve our approach to recruitment and retention and in 2021 introduced a new bonus
scheme ensuring that all Almac employees can share in the performance of the group. Further information on employee
engagement in disclosed within our Section 172 statement below.

Supply chain

Other risks faced are product availability and the fluctuation in prices of both raw materials and consumables. The security of -
" product supply is monitored by the businesses on an ongoing basis with regular reviews of such key factors as supplier financial '
strength, product quality, service levels and alternate sources of supply. The group’s continual review of market prices provides
some protection from the potentiaily adverse impact of volatility in raw material prices. '

Section 172 (1) Statement

In accordance with section 172 (1) of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act), each of the company’s directors (both individually and
collectively) act in a way in which they actively promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole
and the company’s wider role in the.community. The company’s directors take account of, among other matters, the requirements
set out in section 172(1) (a) — (f) of the Companies Act 2006 including:

-e the likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

e the interests of the company's eémployees;

¢ the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

e the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment;

e . the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business condnct and

¢ the need to act fairly between members of the company.

-The directors of the company acknowledge that the long-term and short-term success of the company is dependent upon their
engagement with all of its stakeholders including the company’s employees, customers, suppliers, regulators, and the wider
community. The directors are mindful that this engagement is required in order to make informed decisions at board level.
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Section 172 ¢)) Statement (continued)

The below table sets out the steps taken by the directors of the company to engage with each of the aforementioned groups, the

purpose / aim of that engagement, and the results and beneflts of the engagements.

Engagement with Stakeholders -

Stakeholder Group

Engagement

Employees

Almac Group currently employs
approximately 6,000 people. The
directors recognise that in order to

success for the company and its
stakeholders, the company must
provide a happy, balanced and safe
work environment. People are
Almac’s core asset. Individually
and collectively people are critical
to the success. of our vision. We
recognize excellence and
acknowledge that to empower our
employees, we need to invest in
“their continuous development.

provide continued long-term

Each business unit within the Group hosts monthly Employee Forums
whereby employees can directly raise any concems or issues through
nominated representatives with senior management and the directors.
Meeting minutes are shared Group-wide and follow up actions are
allocated to the relevant Departments in the company.

Almac grants a range, of special recognition awards to employees who
demonstrate a commitment fo the goals and vision of Almac. These
awards include ACE Awards (“Almac Celebrates Excellence”) and Long
Service Awards.

In 2021 Almac introduced a group wide bonus schetne thereby ensuring

that all Almac employees can share in the performance of the group and/or

their operating division.

In 2021 Almac introduced a new policy on hybrid working across the
group providing many employees with the opportunity to adopt a blended
approach of working from home and coming to work on site.

The directors recognise that people are our core asset and are committed
to the health and well-being of all our employees. #All4Health is Almac’s
comprehensive programme for employee health and well-being, designed
to support the mental, physical and financial health of all our employees.
This programme is supported by Almac’s #All4Health WellHub platform
which provides access to a wide range of supporting tools and materials.

; :
The group employs a dedicated Pastoral Care Manager to maintain a
Pastoral Care Service for employee personal wellbeing. Employees can
reach out 24/7 on a confidential basis to discuss any wellbeing issues.

The directors arrange annual “fun days” across all Almac sites in
recognition of our employee’s contribution and in acknowledgement of
the importance of positive employee relationships. Unfortunately, these
were suspended due to the Covid-19 pandemic, however the directors
intend to implement again in the future as soon as it is safe to do so.

Almac operates a Performance Management Programme (PMP) which
facilitates direct and meaningful engagement between employees and line
managers. Yearly training goals are set, and analysed annually to ensure
continued employee progression and one-to-one communication on
development. '
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Section 172 (1) Statement (continued)

Customers

Almac Group provides services to
over 600 companies in the
pharmaceutical industry. The
directors are mindfuil of the need
to actively deliver the company’s
unique culture of delivering
exceptional service solutions for
its customers in"a manner which
is mutually beneficial whilst -
maintaining a reputation for high
standards of business conduct.
We are committed to
understanding and exceeding our
customers’ needs and '
expectations. We build
relationships based on integrity,
responsiveness and excellent
communication..

Customer surveys are performed by an Almac Market Insights team to |
ensure that Almac’s service offering is constantly evolving and stays
consistent with our customers’ long-term requirements and expectations.

Almac, through dedicated Quality’ Assurance Depértments across its
divisions, facilitates on-site client audits of its global facilities to ensure
that customers are confident that Almac performs its services in
accordance with all laws and regulatory requirements. In 2021, Almac
ensured that remote / online audits including live virtual site tours were
offered to clients to ensure continuity of onsite audits during the Covid-
19 pandemic. .

Almac’s Corporate and Legal Affairs Department works very closely with

“all customers to ensure that the key corporate policies of Almac and its

customers (such as anti-bribery, modem slavery, sustainability and
environmental policies) are aligned. Almac engages with-its customers’
Legal Teams on its customers’ own policies and, where appropriate, these
policies are included in underlying legal agreements with Customers.

- The Directors, through engagement with its’'own Business Development

and Project Teams have established a detailed Project Governance
Structure which ensures frequent and meaningful engagement ‘with
customers on a more operational / project management level in respect of |
specific work packages and projects. The individual project governance

" structure can vary from Customer to Customer however at a high level this

includes regular project meetings and KPI reporting.

Suppliers

The directors of the company
recognise that the company’s
supply chain is an extension of
the company’s own business.
Accordingly, the company aims
to maintain a positive and strong
relationship with its suppliers and
to ensure sufficient controls are in
place to ensure the company can
continue to provide customer
service at a very high level.

The directors: recognise that suppliers to Almac are an extension of
Almac’s own service offering to its customers. Almac has a culture of
fostering long term, quality and cost-effective relationships with its

suppliers and. this .is reflected in Almac’s extensive Procurement

Departments for its business units, each with its own detailed Standard
Operating Procedures relevant to its service offering and each of which
reports into a Central Procurement Department.

Almac’ carries out regular and appropriately detailed audits and
inspections of the broad range of suppliers to Almac. Where necessary,

" Almac works closely with suppliers to ensure all remedial ‘actions are

implemented quickly.

Aliac’s Curpupate aud Legal Alfairs Department works elosely with the
suppliers to ensure that Almac’s ethical policies such as modern slavery
and anti-bribery are acknowledged and adopted by its-suppliers.
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 Section 172 (1) Statement (continued)

Community

Almac is part of the wider
community and the directors are
conscious that the actions of
Almac have a bearing on the
community and environment.
Almac is committed to
minimising its impact on the
environment and supporting the
community through long term
commitments and initiatives.

_The Directors established the Almac Charity Committee, which

implements the charitable goals of Almac each year. In addition to
discretionary donations to charities chosen by employees and directors,
the Charity Committee also supports applications for funding from
employees undertaking individual fundraising activities. In 2021, Almac
donated funds to local and international charities in line with our charity

- and community policies.

Almac’ maintains and continually reviews environmental and
sustainability policies. Almac has undertaken- to meet significant
environmental goals including a commitment to monitor and minimise
single-use plastics both within its supply chain and for internal use as far
as is practicably possible.

In July 2021 Almac Group published its first Corporate Social
Responsibility Report. The report is publicly available to all stakeholders
on the Almac website and will be published annually going forward. Our
first report covers group activities under the following headings:-

a. Advancing global human health;’ .

b. Advancing R&D in drug discovery;

c. Advancing our values & our people; and

d. Advancing our impact in communities.

Almac completes an annual Global HSE Annual Report to demonstrate
our approach to minimising risk and ensuring the health and safety of our
employees, clients and visitors. In addition, we share details of our waste
management and energy usage across our facilities.

The directors are committed to the fundamental issues facing society. In
2021 the Board reaffirmed and strengthened their commitment to
diversity, non-discrimination and equal opportunity which was shared
with our employees. Diversity training was rolled out in 2021 with the
support of third party consultants.

" Regulators

Each business unit within Almac engages in an open and cooperative way

The company operates in a highly
regulated industry and  the
directors are mindful of the strict

with all of the regulatory bodies, statutory authorities and all other local
and international government agencies governing its respective area of
business. Almac is audited and certified as required by law with the
legal and regulatory requirements Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory Agency (MHRA), the
in relation to which the company U.S. Food & Drug Administration (FDA), the Health Products Regulatory
must comply. Authority (HPRA) and other agencies. Almac has dedicated Quality
Assurance Departments to ensure compliance, and such compliance is
r.eported directly to the Board.




" Almac Grbup Limited o o S : 7

"Group strategic report for the year ended 30 Séptembér 2021
Future deyeloplnents |

The group intends to continue its commitment to research and development and capital investmerit to provide innovative
solutions and services to its customers. The group has committed to an ambitious programme of capital investment. :

" There are many challenges facirig the pharmaceutical and biotech markets with the introduction of new technologies and the
emergence of new global competitors.: The group beheves itis well positioned to meet these future challenges and opportunities
within this changlng marketplace . .
Erivironment

The group recognises its corporate responsibility to carry out its operations whilst ensuring that there is minimal environmental

“impact. The directors’ continued aim is to comply with all applicable envnronmental legislation, prevent pollution ‘and reduce

waste wherever possnble

] Health and safety

The group is committed to achlevmg the hlghest practicable standards’in health and safety management and strlves to make all
sites and off'ces safe envnronments for employees and customers alike. -

This réport was approvgd by the board and s;gned on its behalf.
W. f e R '. ) \.
N Harkin

Director .
20 January 2022
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Directors’ report fqr the year ended 30 September 2021

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the group and the parent company for the year
ended 30 September 2021. A review-of the business, position at the year end and future developments are detailed in the group’s
strategic, report and included in this report by cross reference.

Financial risk management .

The group’s operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include market risk (including price risk and interest rate
risk), foreign exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The group has in place a risk management programme that seeks to
limit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the group by monitoring the foregoing risks and ensuring that the balance
.sheet strength is 'maintained at all times.

1

'Price risk

The group does not have a major exposure to commodity price risk as a result of its operations and is not exposed to equxty
securities price risk as it holds no hsted investments.

Interest rate risk

The group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings which are a combination of overdrafts, bank borrowings, term loans, loans
from related parties and lease liabilities. Interest bearing assets consist of short-term bank deposits. Borrowings at variable rates
expose the group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the group to fair value interest rate risk. The
group manages these risks by a mixture of variable interest rates on overdrafts, bank borrowings and loans from related parties
linked to LIBOR (and subsequently to SONIA following changes in the banking industry and the phasing out of LIBOR) or UK
Bank of England base rate and fixed rate interest on the group’s finance lease liabilities. The interest rates are monitored on a
regular basis with reference to movements in global interest rates: and the potential impact upon the group’s cost of borrowing.
Further commentary is prowded in note 3. .

Foreign exchange risk

Whilst the main part of the group’s revenues and expenses are denominated in UK pounds sterling, the group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk in the normal course of business, principally on sales in US dollars and investment in its overseas

operations, principally in the USA. Group policy is to minimise the exposure of overseas subsidiaries to transaction risk by
matching local currency income and costs, and also'to minimise exposure to movement in foreign exchange rates through the
introduction of the use of spot and forward contracts during the year.

Credit risk

The group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before sales are made. Credit
control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
The amount of exposure to individual customers is subject to a limit, which is reassessed regularly by the Board of Directors
(‘Board’). Credit risk also arises from cash and cash equivalents with banks and financial institutions. Banking arrangements are
reviewed and regular]y reassessed by the board.
Liquidity risk N
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity reserve on the basis of
expected cash flow. In addition, the group’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and
considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these; monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and
external regulatory requirements; and maintaining debt financing plans.

Dividends

The overriding objectives of the Almac Group are fo:

° Strateglcally develop and expand a world class Group of companies operating in the Pharmaceutlcal and Biotech
sectors; and

e  Adhere to the healthcare objectives of The McClay Foundation, thereby protecting the Iegacy of the Group’s Founder,
Sir Allen McClay, and his vision for the Foundation and its charitable purposes. '
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Dividends (continued)
Those objectives are reflected in the Strategic Goals adopted by Almac which include, amongsi others:

continued ownership of the group by The McClay Foundation;
continuing group wide innovation;

achievement of best-in-class business offerings;

maintaining and improving profit margins; and

cultivating a desirable place to work.

In order to achieve its objectives and meet those strategic goals, Almac has developed ambitious capital and research and
development programmes requiring significant on-going investment in its trading subsidiaries and the R&D programmes they -
are engaged in. That investment is funded primarily by bank borrowings and the reinvestment of all profits generated from the
group’s trading activities back into Almac and its subsidiaries. As a consequence, no dividends were paid during the year (2020:
‘£nil) and the directors do not recommend payment of a final-dividend (2020: £nil).

Energy and carbon reporting

In line with the 'Companies (Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon'Report) Regulations
2018' and related accompanying government guidance 'Environmental Reporting Guidelines: Including Streamlined Energy and
Carbon Reporting requirements: March 2019, the group presents details of its carbon and energy usage.

In line with the associated regulations and guidance, the group has only provided consolidated reporting for companies' meeting
- the Companies Act definition of a 'large’' company and where annual energy consumption is greater than 40,000 kWh. In addition,
under the associated regulations and guidance, reporting for foreign subsidiaries is not required.

Accordingly, the following report is based on the energy and carbon usage of Almac Group Limited, Almac Sciences Limited,
Galen Limited, Almac Clinical Services Limited and Almac Pharma Services Limited. The activities of these companies include
the manufacturing, packing and distribution of pharmaceutical product, storage and logistics service and the provision of custom

synthesis services on a range of chemicals for customers. o ‘

Current reporting year Prior reporting year
1 Oct 2020 - 30 Sep 2021 1 Oct 2019 - 30 Sep 2020
UK UK

Enérgy Consumption used to calculate emissions 94.050.144 89.560.040

(KWh) ,050, ,960,

Scope 1 - Emissions in metric tonnes CO2e¢

Total Scope 1 Emissions from activities which the 9,956 9,372

group owns or controls )

Total Scope 2 Emissions from purchase of electricity 8,897 9,438

purchased for own use ) )

Total gross.Scope 1 & Scope 2 emissions in metric 18,853 18,810

tonnes CO2e

Intensity Ratio tCO2e (gross Scope 1 + 2)

Tonnes CO2e / UK employee 6.0 6.5

Scope 3 - Emissions in metric tonnes CO2e B

Total Scope 3 Emissions from business travel by 100 100

means not owned or controlled by the group
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Energy and carbon reporting (continued)

Methodology :
To determine emissions for the year ended 30 September 2021, the company used a methodology compliant with the Greenhouse
Gas (GHG' ) Protocol and incorporated the 2021 UK Government GHG conversion factors for green-house gas reporting.

Gas, biomethane and electricity consumption was based on actual data, obtained from supplier invoices, meter readings and
online supplier portal data dependent on the. specific arrangements and circumstances of each subsidiary. Transport fuel
consumption was obtained from fuel provider reports. The collected consumption data is then converted into greenhouse gas
emissions associated with each activity using annually updated emission factors from the UK Government.

Energy efficiency measures

During the year Almac continued to engage with stakeholders including customers, suppliers and employees regarding our
commitment to carbon reduction. Reporting of the group's environmental impact was expanded and additional resources were
dedicated to measurement of energy consumption in order to develop benchmarks to support commitments on energy and carbon.

Research and_developmehf activities

The group is strongly committed to research and development activities in the areas of clinical diagnostics and drug discovery
in order to secure and enhance its market position. Research expenditure in the year totalled £10,407,317 (2020: £8,326,343)
and was expensed as incurred. This is stated before the deduction-of £673,300 (2020: £973,868) of research and development
tax credits. A further £5,190,141 (2020: £3,856,209) of research and development tax credits have been deducted from other
expenses. No development expenditure was incurred during the year (2020: £ml)

Directors

The directors who served during the year ancl up to. the date of signing the financial statements are shown on page 1.
Political donations

No donations 'for political purposes were made during the year (2‘020: £nil).

No directors benefit from qualifying third party indemnity provisions in place during the financial year and up to the date of this
report.- ) - ’

Em bloyees

The group systematically provides employees with information on matters of concern to them, consulting them or their
representatives regularly, so that their views can be taken into account when making decisions that are likely to affect their-
interests. Employee involvement in the group is encouraged, as achieving a common awareness on the part of all employees of
the financial and economic factors affecting the group plays a major role in ObjeCthCS

The group is committed to employment policies, which follow best practice based on equal opportunities for all employees,
irrespective of sex, race, colour, disability or marital status. The group gives full and fair consideration to applications for
employment from disabled persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities. Approptiate arrangements are made
for the continued employment and training, career development and promotion of disabled persons employed by the group. If
members of staff become disabled, where possible, the group continues employment either in the same or an alternative position
with appropriate retrammg being given if necessary. .



Almac Group Li'mit'ed. S - ‘ S 1 &

Directors’ repoijt for the year ended 30 ‘September 2021
Covid 19

The Covid 19 pandemic has brought disruption to the operations of many. businesses including the group. As a group servicing
the global pharmaceutical and biotech sectors it has also presented some commercial opportunities. It has led to an unprecedented
" level of market volatility and economic uncertainty. These events and conditions have been considered in the preparation of these
financial statements, where management has exercised its judgement in the process of applying the company’s accounting
policies. There are no areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements. . ‘

The carrying amounts of the group’s non- ~financial and financial assets have been assessed to.determine whether there is any
objective evidence or indication that these assets may be impaired, taking into consideration the conditions existing at the balance
sheet -date including the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic. There is no material adverse financial impact arising from' the
assessments carried out by the management. As the global Covid 19 situation remains fluid at the date these financial statements
were authorised for issue, the group cannot reasonably ascertain the full extent of the probable impact of the Covid 19 disruptions
on its operating and financial performance for the financial year ending 30 September 2022.

. Going concern

" The group’s forecasls and projections, taking account of reasonably possnble changes in trading performance, show that the group
has adequate financial resources to meet its operauonal needs for at least a period of twelve months from the date the financial
statements. Consequently, the directors have prepared these financial statements on a going concern basis. :
After making enquiries and having assessed the group's principal risks, covenant compliance and the other relevant matters, the

directors have.a reasonable expectation that the group has access to adequate financial and. other resources to continue in
operational-existence for the foreseeable future. : -

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors
So far as each of the directors in office at the date of approval of these financial statements is aware:
e thereis no relevant audit information of which the group and parent company’s auditors are unaware; and

e they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant:
audit information and to establish that the group’s and parent company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Independent auditors

The independent audltors, PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated thelr w111|ngness to continue in ofﬁce and a resolution
concerning their re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

“This report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf.

N Harkin
Director
20 January 2022
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Statement of directors’pre’sponsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparmg the Annual report and financial statements and the ‘financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have
prepared the financial statements in accordance with mtematnonal accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of '
the Compames Act 2006. - _ . :

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the companyrand of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing the ﬁnancxal
statements, the dlrectors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e state whether applicable international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act
" 2006 havé been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

e prepare the financial statenients on the going concern basis unless itis mappropnate to presume that the company will
continue in business. :

The dlrectors are’ respons:ble for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for takmg reasonable steps for the prevention
* and detection of fraud and other jrregularities. -
I .
The diréctors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posmon of the company and enable them to ensure
that the fmanaal statements comply w1th the Companies Act 2006. .

N Harkin )
Director . .
20 January 2022
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Independent audltors report to the
members of Almac Group Limited

Report on the audit of the'financial statements

Opinion .
In our opinion, Almac Group Limited’s group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial statements”):

« give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 30 September 2021 and of the group’s profit
and the group’s and company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: Group and Parent company balance sheets
as at 30 September 2021; Group income statement, Group statement of comprehensive income, Group and Parent company cash flow.
statements and Group and Parent company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial
statements which include a description of the stgnmcant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. ' :

Independence _

We remained independent of the’ group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, which includes the FRC s-Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

Conclusions relatlng to going concern .

Based on the work we have performed we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or condmons that, individually
‘or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least
twelve months from when the financial statements-aré authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or condlttons can be predicted, this conclusnon is not a guarantee as to the group's and the
company's ability to continue as a going concern.

- Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this
report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion ‘on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form
of assurance thereon.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
‘Almac Group Limited (continued)

Reporting on other information (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider

whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform

procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other

information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other inforniation. weare’
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities. ’

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies
Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions and matters
as described below. '

Strategic report and Directors' Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the |nformat|on given in the Strategic report and Directors' Report
for the year ended 30 September 2021 is. consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable

legal requirements. ' '

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company a_nd‘ their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did

not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements , .

~ As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the directors are responsible
.for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such intemal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ' .

in preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detaited below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations
related to product safety (including but not limited to Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory Agency (MHRA), the U.S. Food &
Drug Administration (FDA), the Health Products Regulatory Authority (HPRA)) and tax legislation, and we considered the extent to which
non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also consndered those laws and regulations that have a
direct impact on the financial statements such as the Compames Act 2006.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of -
“Almac Group L1m1ted (contlnued)

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit (continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of
override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate journal entries to manipulate financial
results, including revenue recognition and manipulation of eamings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and management
bias in accounting estimates or significant judgements. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

» discussions with management, including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulation
and fraud;

« identifying and testing unusual 1ournal entries, in particular those ]ournal entries posted with an unusual account comblnatlon and

e evaluating and, where appropriate, challenglng assumptlons and |udgements made by management in determining significant
accountmg estimates.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of not
_detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through.collusion.-

A further description of .our responsibiliies for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report. ’

Use of this report
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior.consent in writing. '

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

‘s we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or '

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report-arising from this responsibility.

Kevifi MacAllister (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Belfast / - E A ] ZoLl
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Group income statement for the year ended 30 September 2021
2021 2020

. Note v : £ £
Continuing operations .
Revenue 4 735,071,164 677.253,640
Cost of sales 5 (@74,141571)  (447,133,092)

. Grosé profit 260,329,593 230,120,548
Distribution costs @Q7271,783) . (29,218,198) -
Administrative éxpenses (133,180;231)' . (l§5,6l6,352) .
Résearch and development net expenditure . (9,734,017) (7,352,475)
Operating profit 90,143,562 67,933,523
'|' Operating profit is analysed as: ’

Operating profit before depreciation, amortisation and o
research and development expenditure (“EBITDA™) 136,650,197 112,556,286
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (22,215,816) (21,111,524)
Depreciation of right of use assets (6,376,568) (7,176,992)
Amortisation of intangible assets " . (8,180,234) (8,530,765)
Research and development expenditure (9,734,017) - (7,803,482)
Finance costs R 6 (9,370,422) . (4,398,009)
Finance.income o 9,254> 14,060
Finance cost — net (9,361,168) (4,383,949)
Profit before income tax ' 80,782,394 63,549,574
Income tax expense . 8 (16576,675)  (10,682.833)
Proﬁt»for the year 64,205,719 52,866,741

The notes on pages 23 to 68 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Gll'ou'p statement of comprehensive income for.‘the year ended 30 September 2021

2021 . 2020
‘ B £
Profit for the year 64,205,719 52,866,741
Other comprehensive expense: '
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
Currency translation differences (4,778,900) (5;146,733) .
Total other comprehensive expense for the year . (4,778,900) (5,146,733)
‘ 59426819 47,720,008

Total comprehensive income for the year

. The notes on pages 23 to 68 are an integrél part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Group and parent company statements of changes in equity |
For the year ended 30 September 2021 '

Attributable to owners of the parent

. - Currency .
Share Share - translation Retained Total
capital premium  reserve earnings equity
Group . £ £ £ £ £
At 1 October 2019 ' 15,296,312 . 173,911,921 36,918,908 - 218,987,976 445,115,117
Arising on the adg)ption of IFRS 16 - ) - - (3,252,992) (3,252,992)
Comprehensive income ’ - . ]
Profit for the year ' B - .- - 52,886,741 A 52,886,741
Other comprehensive expense .
Currency translation differences - - (5,146,733) - .(5,146,733)
At 30 September 2020 . ' . 15,296,312 173,911,921 31,772, 175 - 268,62.1 ,725 489,602,133
Comprehensive income } T T . . ' :
Profit for the year ' L .. 64205719 64205719
Other comprehensive income ) . ' - '
Currency translation differences ' - - (4,778,900) Ll 4,778,900)
At 30 Séptember 2021 o 15,296,312 173,911,921 26,993,275 332,827,444 549,028,952
* Share Shgre Accumulated Total .
: ) capital =~ premium , losses © equity
Company . £ : £ £ £
At 1 October 2019 ’ 15,296,312  173911,921 - (25,133,752) 164,074,481
Arising on the adoption of IFRS' 16 ' - - 2,365,932 2,365,932
Comprehensive expense ' 4 _
Loss for the year - S S (5495056) - (5,495,056)
At 30 September 2020 ] - 15,296,312 173,911,921 (28,262,876) 160,945,357
Comprehensive expense L . . o
" Loss for the year ) ‘ ) . - - (8,243,347)  (8,243,347)
At 30 September 2021 ‘ . .' 15,296,312 173,911,921 (36,506,223) 152,702,010

The notes on pages 23 to 68 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Group balance'sheet as at 30 'September 2021 g
. A S K 2021 ' 2020

_ Note ' ) i B

Assets ' '
Non-current assets . . . ‘ . ) .
Property, blant and equipment’ : AT o 9 T 323,054,587 305,098,847
Right of use assets - o T . 49,803,935 53,350,489

. Goodwill . S : ' 3 L 81324787 82,836,147,
Other intangible assets o T | 28291082 28,162,261
Deferred income tax assct | L 4 - 694,165 706,543
Total non-current assets o o B ' 483,168,556 470,154,287
Current assets - ’ o . . ' ' . A _ ;
CInventories ' v 15 27433602 30466407
Current income tax asset : E ‘ , ) B . 11,855,436 19,638,731

~' Trade and other receivables C . ' » - ' 16 . A176,>668,338 .1'61‘,352,991
Cash and cash equivalents - * o S 17 115088844 - - 77,691,180
Tofal current assets - ‘ 331,046,220 279,149,309
Total assets - . ' . A 814,214,776 .749,.3(‘)3,596_
Equity and liabilities '
Liabilities
Current liabilities . L .

" Borrowings o o ST L 8932251 16,586,143

* Trade and other payables ’ o : 19 . 130,639,348 - 127,449,259
'Current income tax liabilities -' . : o B : 1,871,218 -
‘Total current liabilities : A o . 14‘1,442,817' . 144,035,402
Non-current liabilities . - — '
Borrowings - ' I o 8 62,884,153 68,863,192
Deférred income tax liabilities B : 14, 22,989,688 12,960,496
Deferred income. ) ’ ' 20 ) .18,982,324 - 17,838,505 ‘
Other non-current liabilities ) ; ' ) 21 15,383,139 12,126,039
Provisions for liabilities and charges ' . ) - 22 3,503,703 3,877,829

Total non-current liabilities ‘ ' 123,743,007 115,666,061
Total liabilities . . _ . 265185824 259,701,463
Equity attributable to owners of the parent . »
Share capital : » : : 23 - 15,296,312 15,296,312
Share premium ‘ ) ) o . - .23 » 173,911,921, - 173,911,921
Currency translation reserve ‘ : : 26,993,275 31,772,175
Retained earnings, - ) . ' , 332,827,444 268,621,725
Total equity ) ‘. " 549,028,952 489,602,133
Total equity and liabilities =~ . . ’ 814,214,776 . 749,303,596

The notes on pages 23 to 68 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. The financial statements on pages
16 to 68 were authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 20 January 2022 and were signed on their behalf by: '

AD Armstrong (Director) . - ' " N Harkin (Director) Registered nﬁmber: NI 041551
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Parent company balance sheet as at 30 September 2021 A - :
‘ o : o 2021 - - 2020

' T . ‘ . Note £ , £
Assets ' » i
Non-current assets i N - C o o
Property, plant and equ1pment ’ ) 9 ' 13,271,318 10,460,818
Right of use assets o ' ' o 3,103,894 3,455,483
Other intangible assets : L ' 12 2940739 1325246
Investments in subsidiaries o ) J ‘ ) 13 ’ 175,676,859 175,620,913
Finance lease receivable o 16 11,992,404 13,063,678
Total non-current assets ) . C . 206,985,214 203,926,138
Current assets o . . . ) .
Trade and other receivables ) . o 16 - . 259,229,796 270,929,177
Cash and cash équivalents ) : ) : ' 17 : 67;382_,349 34,294, 120
Total current assets - . ' 326,612,145 305,223,297
Total assets . ] . - 533,597,359 509,149,435.
Equity and Liabilities
Liabilities
Current liabilities . A .

" Borrowings =~ A ' ' , : T 326839954 290,495,583
Trade and other payables ' } : 19 21,994,972 23,427,531
Total current liabilities . ‘ T 348,834926 313923114
Non-current liabilities e : : :

Borrowings , s 18 28924,53 - 32,701,375
Deferred income tax liabilities o . 14 . 1,111,857 © 98410
Deferred income S : 20 : 446 %)
che'r nbn-currentﬂliabilities . ' R 21 ' 2,023,584 ‘ l‘,4‘80,436
Total non-current liabilities ' . ‘ 32,060,423 34,280,064
Total liabilities : _ ' . 380,895,349 . 348,204,078
Equity attributable to owners of the parent ) E

Share capital - o . 23 ’ - 15,296,312 15,296,312
Share premium . S 23 173911921 173,911,921
Accumulated losses l A _ '

At 1 October . 4 _ : (28,262,876)  (25,133,152) _
Loss for the year ' S _— ' ' . ©(8,243,347)  (5,495,056)

| Adjustment on adption of IFRS 16 - , . 2,365,932
At 30 September - ) : . T (36,506,223)  (28.262.876)
Total equity : 152,702,010 160,945,357

“Total equity and liabilities ) ) ) ) 533,597,359 - 509,149,435

- The notes on pages 23 to 68 are an integral part of these fmancxal statements. The financial statements on pages 16 to 68 were
authorised for issue by the Board of directors.on 20 January 2022 and were signéd on their behalf by:

A D Armstrong (Director) . S Campbell (Director) . Registered Number NI1041551
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Group cash flow statement for the year ended 30 Sep’tembel} 2021

) 2021 2020
’ o Note £ £
Cash flows from operating activities . .
Cash generated from operations 25 11_1,417,913 4 .108,561,309
Interest paid ' ' (1,112,961) (2,181,439)
* Incomé tax paid (947,010) (8,511,662)
- Net cash generated from operating activities 109,357,942 97,868,208
Cash flows from investing activities . . .
Purchase of intangible assets .(8,669,752) h (6,048,275)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ) (47,003,009) (37,333,904)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment , - 13,850
- Proceeds from disposal of other intangible assets 28,600 -
Capital grants received 3,358,236 3914936
Finance income received . 9,254 14,060
Net cash used in invesfing activities- _ (52,305,27}) (39,439,333)
Cash flows from financing activities - o B
Lease princibal payments : T (8,179,226) " (9,396,269) -
New loans received ' A ) - © 19,928,940
Repayment of borrowings (5,140,241) | (7,032,068)
" Repayments to related‘parties (net) . - (178,590) * (267,855)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities (13;,498,057) 3,232,748
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 43,554,614: 61,661,623
Ei‘fect of foreigﬁ exchange movement on cash and cash ‘(1,09},653) (521,205)
equivalents :
Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at beginning of theyear 72,550,087 . 11,409,669
Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at end of the year 17 115,011,648 : 72,550,087

- The notes on pages 23 to 68 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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*

o Pai’ent company cash flow statement for the year ended 30 September 2021

2021 A - 2020 -

. Note £ £
CashAflows from operating activities .
Cash generated from operations ' ' 25 4,105,654 4,061,366

. Interest paid ' . , (14,575447) - (12,467,684) -

Net cash generated in operating activities ‘ (10,469,793) (8,406,318)
Cash flows from investing activities ' o
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ' ' o (4,084,594) (1,908,236)
Purchase of intangible assets ' ‘ » R (2,277,865) - (788,791)
Purchase of subsidiary uﬁdertakings C “ * (55,946) -
Proceeds from-disposal of property, plant and equipment . 739620 o - 8,000
Proceeds from disposal of other intangible assets o 28,600 -
Receipts from finance leases : ‘ S . 1,472,567 582,975
Repayments from group uhdertakings , ‘ 4 9,658,402 - 8,576,573 .
Finance income received ' ' 6,764,373 8,892,605
Net cash generated from investing activities ‘ ' ' . . 11,579,157 15,363,126
Cash flows from financing activities '
Lease pﬁnéipgl payments ' . (1,886,050) } (1,129,302)
Repayment of borrowings . A (4,149,663) 1(5,264,843)
New loans received ‘ . : - - 15,000,000
Advances from group undertakings ' 43,193,168 25,521,610
Repayments to related parties - : - . (178,590) : (89,305)
Net cash generated from financing activities - : ) 36,978,865 34,038,160
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ' 38,088,229 ) 40,994,968
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at beginning of the year 29,294,120 - (.I 1,700,848)

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of the year 17 - 67,382,349 29,294,120

The notes on pages 23 to 68 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021
1 Accounting policies
: G'enera.l information '

" The group’s principal activities during the year extend from drug discovery through all areas of clinical trials to the
commercialisation of pharmaceutical products. The financial statements are ‘presented in UK pound sterling. Almac Group
Limited is a private limited company incorporated and registered in the United Kingdom and limited by shares. The company is
domiciled in Northern Ireland. The company’s registered address is detailed on page 1. The financial statements were approved
by the Board of directors on 20 January 2022. '

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

. Basis of preparation

_These consolidated financial statements have been prepared .on a going concern basis and in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under
IFRS. These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. °

"The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies. Management has ‘
concluded that there are no critical assumptions, estimates or judgements involving a high degree of judgement or complexity
“which require further disclosure other than that disclosed in respect of the self-insured medical scheme in note 28.

The group’s acéounting policies are detailed below.
Going concern

The Group’s forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the
group has adequate financial resources to meet its operational needs for at least a period of twelve months from the date the
financial statements. Consequently, the directors have prepared these financial statements on a going concern basis.

After making enqumes and having assessed the Group's principal risks, covenant compliance and the other relevant matters,
the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has access to adequate financial and other resources to continue
in operatnonal existence for the foreseeable future.

Parent company profit and loss account

The directors’ have taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and have not
" presented an income statement for the company alone. The loss for the year ended 30 September. 2021 is £8,243,347
(2020: loss of £5,495,056)

New standards, amendments, and interpretations effective in the year to 30 September 2021

The accounting policies set out below are those that the group and company has adopted in accordante with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 30 September 2021.

No standards have been adopted by the group or company for the first time during the financial year begmmng on or after 1
October 2020 that have had a material impact on the group or company.

Standards, amendments, and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been adopted early

Certain new accountinig standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 September 2021
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the group or company. None of these are expected to have a material
‘impact on the company in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.



Almac Group Limited - - " o 2%

Noté_S to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation
@ - Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when
the group is exposed to,or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
group. They are deconsohdated from the date that _control ceases. :

The group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting ﬂ_'bm
a contingent consideration arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by- acqunsmon basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. ) 2

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses ansmg from such re-measurement
are’ recogmsed in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with [AS
39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously held int&rest measured is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement. Inter-comparly transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary amounts reported by subsidiarie$ have
been adjusted to conform with the group’s accounting policies. :

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity,

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the group ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit, or loss.
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' Notes to the financnal statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (contmued)

1 Accountmg pohcnes (contmued)
Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly offices, leasehold improvements and laboratories. Property, plant andA equipment is stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly-attributable to the acquxslnon
of the items. . . .

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is.
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

No depreciation is charged on land, nor on assets.in the course of construction until such time as they are brought into use. For

all other assets depreciation is calculated to write off the cost less their estimated residual values, on a straight line basis over the

expected useful economic lives of the assets concérned, or the life of the project, whichever is earlier. The principal annual rates
) used are as follows:

. . %o
Buildings - 2-125
Plant and machinery . - 10
Fixtures, fittings and computer equipment - 10-25 -

_ Motor vehicles ) - - 25
The assets’ residual values and useful economic lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An assel’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount. .

Gains and losses on dlsposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrymg amount and are recogmsed w1th1n
administrative expenses in the income statement.

Capitalisation of finance costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substannally ready for their intended use or sale.

_ Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in ‘intangible assets’.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed. Gams and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to thc
entity sold.

" Goodwill is allocated to'éash-genérating units for the purposes of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination-in which the
goodwill arose. :

I~
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' ‘Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)
Computer software and software under devel'op}nent "

The costs of acquiring and bringing into use computer software are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful economic life of the software which is between three to ten years.

Capitalised software development costs include external direct costs of material and services together with direct labour costs
relating to software development. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and -
unique software products controlled by the group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

‘management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;

adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software product are
available; and ‘

e the expendlture attributable to the software product durmg its development can be rehably measured.

; .
Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs’
previously recognised as an expense are not recogmsed as an asset in a subsequent period.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development employee costs
and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised
as an expense as mcurred Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recogmsed as an asset ina subsequent
period.

Product licences

N

Product li_cences acqui‘red are capitalised and amortised over their useful economic life which is between one to twelve years.
They are carried at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. : :

Research and development

Expenditure on research is written off in the year in which it is incurred. Development expenditure .is capitalised when the
criteria for recognising an asset are met.

Research and development tax credits

Under UK tax legislation introduced.in the 2013 Finance Bill research and development credits can be claimed against qualifying
research and development expenditure. Where these credits are not expected to be restricted by the PAYE/NI cap included within
the legislation then the credit is, in substance, a government grant. The group has elected to treat such credits as a government
grant and recognise the credits in the same period as the research and development expenditure arises.
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1 Acceunting policies (centinued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful economic life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be récoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell,
and value in use.” For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped by cash generating unit. Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that have suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

At each balance sheet date non-financial assets not carried at fair value are assessed to determine whether there is an indication
that the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) may be impaired. If there is such an indication, the recoverable amount of the
asset (or asset’s cash generating unit).is compared to the carrying amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating-unit).

The recoverable amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. Value in use is defined as the present value of the future cash flows before interest and tax obtainable as a result of the
asset’s (or asset’s cash generating unit) continued use. These cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax dlscount rate that
represents the current market risk-free rate and the risks inherent in the asset.

If the recoverable amount of thé asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is estimated to be lower than the carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account unless the
asset has been revalued when the amount is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any previously recogmsed
revaluation. Thereafter, any excess is recogmsed in profit and loss account. .

" If an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the revised carrying amount does not exceed the-
carrying amount that would have been determined (netof depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account..

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one party and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another party. Financial assets of the Company include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and favourable
derivative financial instruments. Financial liabilities of the Company include trade and other payables and borrowings.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and hablhtles are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual obligations of the instrument., . :

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
i) Those to be measured at amortised costs; and

i) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through Other Comprehensive Income of through profit
and loss).

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows. The Company reclassifies its financial assets when and only when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, other financial liabilities at amortised
cost or as derivatives.



Almac Group Limited ‘ o

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued) |

1 . Accounting policies (continued)
Finapcial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities are recognised at fair value plus, in the case of financial instruments not at fair value through profit and loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs directly
attributable to financial liabilities which are measured at fair value (i.e. falr value through profit and loss or derivatives) are
recognised in the income statement as incurred. :

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to recognition, financial assets and liabilities are measured according to the category to which they are classified.

(a)  Financial assets

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the Company’s business mode! for managing those financial assets and
the cash flow characteristics of those financial assets. The Company only has financial assets classified at amortised cost. These
assets are those held for contractual collection of cash flows, where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and

interest and are held at amortised cost. Any gains or losses arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss. '

(b) - Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities are c13551ﬁed as at FVTPL when the financial hablhty is either held for tradmg or it is designated as at
FVTPL . .

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or
* loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest pand on the financial liability and is included in
the ‘other gains and losses’ line item in the income statement. .

(c) Otherfinancial liabilities.

Trade and other payables and borrowings (including amounts due to related parties) are classified as other financial liabilities
and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method (see below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income
and expenses over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts’
and payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premnums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt 1nstrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
'carrymg amount on initial recogmtlon

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as FVTPL.
Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial assef only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it

transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company

neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,

the Company recognises its retained interest in the, asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the

Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company contmues to
recognise the financial asset and also recogmses a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 Séptember 2021 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued) .
Impairment of a financial asset ' . .

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. For trade receivables the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS.9, which requires expected
lifetime losses-to be recognised from the initial recognition of the receivables. For other receivables the Company applies the
three stage model to determine expected credit losses.

Fair value of financial instruments

- Fair value amounts disclosed in these financial statements represent the Company’s estimate of the price at which a financial
instrument could be exchange in an arm’s length market transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties who are under no
compulsion to act. They are point-in-time ‘estimates that may change in subsequent reporting periods due to'market conditions -
or other factors. Fair value is determined by reference to quoted prices in the most advantageous active market for that instrument
to which the Company has immediate access. However, where there is no active market for the Company’s financial instruments,
the Company determines fair value based on internal or external valuation models, such as stochastic models, option-pricing
models and discounted cash flow models. These calculations represent management’s best estimates based on a range of methods
and assumptions. Since they are-based on estimates the fair values may not be realised in an actual sale or immediate settlement
of the instruments.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The group, assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that- loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the fmancxa] asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. :

Evidence of impairment may include indications lhat the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy’ or other
financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the esumated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. '

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value-of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The asset’s carrymg amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement:

Provisions

Provisions for medical claims under the group’s self-insured medical scheme are recognised where: the group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Where
there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations is small. Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre -tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. . .
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Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (contmued)

1 Accountmg policies (contmued)
Investments in subsidia’ries

Investments in subsidiaries are held as non-current assets and are recorded at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration
paid, less any provision for impairment. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrymg amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. .

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable‘value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling pnce
in the ordinary course of the business, less applicable variable selling expenses. :

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business:
If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating.cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as noncurrent assets. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.-

Cash and cash equivalents

In the group and company statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, and bank overdrafts. In the group and company balance sheet bank overdrafts are shown within borrowmgs in current |
liabilities on the balance sheet.

‘Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to‘items recogmsed in other comprehensive income or directly in equnty In this case the tax.is also recogmsed in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the group’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts €xpected to be paid to the tax authorities. '

. Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However,. the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the.foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity of different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (contmued)

1 Accounting policies (contmued)
Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over. the period of the borrowmgs using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment -
for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group or company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the .ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented
‘as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost usmg the effective
interest method.

Grants

Grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the group will
comply with all attached conditions. Grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate. Grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the expected useful economic lives of the related assets. '

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly atmbutable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as
a deduction, net.of tax, from the proceeds. :

Revenue recognition

Revenue coﬁgprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the provision of services and products in the
ordinary course of the group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax and after eliminating sales within the group.
"The group has a number of revenue streams across its divisions as follows:

a) Provision of custom chemical synthesis, diagnostic services and full time equivalent staff to-customer specified projects
These services meet the criteria to be recognised over time as the business has the right to reccive payment as
performance progresses or, in the case of the provision of full time equivalent staff to customer specnﬁed projects, the

" customer simultaneously receives and consumes economic benefit as the services provided.

b) Manufacture, packaging, distribution and sale of pharmaceutical products
For contracts for the sale of pharmaceutical products, the performance obligation is the acceptance or delivery of the
item. Revenue is recognised at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods based on the delivery
terms of the contract. ’

¢) Product packaging, labelling, storage and shipping :
The group undertakes these services in support of clinical trials. These are treated as separate performance obligations
as the customer can benefit from each separately as they are distinct promises within the respective contracts. As the
business has the right to receive payment as the contract progresses revenue is recognised over time.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)
1 Accounting policies (continued) |
Revenue recognition (continued) .

d) Design, development, validation and maintenance of Interactive Response Technology
Within the Clinical Technologies division Almac develops customer solutions in support of clinical trials capable of
testing and evaluating pharmaceutical drug efficacy and capturing the results of related clinical trials. This may also
include the maintenance and support of the system and management of the drug supply: chain throughout the clinical
_trial. Revenue is recogmsed over time as the business has the nght to recelve payment as performance progresses.

e) Product development services, project management and procurement services
The group performs product development, project management and procurement services on a variety of contracts. The
performance obligation is the completion of these services which meet the criteria to ‘be recognised over time as the
customer simultaneously receives-and consumes the benefits as the performance progresses.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements 6f each of the group’s entities are measured using the c.urr'ency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in UK
pound sterling, which is the group’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates. of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign °
currencies are recognised in the-income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash ﬂow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income statement
within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement within
administrative expenses.

The results and financial positit)n of all the group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;
e income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income

and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

- & all resulting currency translatton differences are recogmsed as a separate component of equtty in a currency translatton
" reserve. .
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September, 2021 (continu_'ed)

1 Accounting policies (continuedj
Employee benefit trusts

The group’s share of the assets of the Almac Employee Benefit Trust and the Almac Offshore Employee Benefit Trust, which
are both employee benefit trusts, have been incorporated within the group’s balance sheet under the appropriate asset categories.

Pension obligations

The group operates a defined contribution plan for employees whereby the group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
avallable : :

Share-based payments

The group issues cash-settled phantom share-based payments to certain employees of the company for their services to the group.

The group accounts for these phantom share based payments as cash-settled phantom share-based payments which are measured

at fair value and recognised as an expense in the income statement with a cotresponding increase in liabilities (within accruals).

The fair value is recognised over the period during which employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards, subject to

the group’s estimate of the number of awards which will lapse due to employees leaving the group prior to vesting. The total

amount recognised in the income statement as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual amount of awards that are expected to
. vest, except where forfeiture is due to employee’s termination of contract.

Leases

Definition

A leaseé is a contract, or a part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset or a physically distinct part of an asset (“the .’
underlying asset”) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Further, the contract must convey the right to the Group
to control the asset or a physically distinct portion thereof. A contract is deemed to convey the right to control the underlymg
asset if, throughout the period of use, the Group has the rlght to:

® ©  Obtain substantially all the economic benefits frbm the use of the underlying asset; and
® ' Direct the use of the underlying asset (e.g. direct how and for what purpose the asset is used)

Where contracts contain a lease coupled with an agreement to purchase or sell other goods or services (i.e., non-lease
components), the non-lease components are identified and accounted for separately from the lease component. The’
consideration in the contract is allocated to the lease and non-lease components on a relative standalone price basis using the
principles in IFRS 15.

The Group predommantly engages in leases for land and buildings and motor vehicles. The majority of leases for the Group -
are located in the UK and Ireland as a result of the manufacturing and office locations.
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1 Accountmg policies (contlnued)

Leases (continued)
Initial recogmtlon and measurement

The Group and Company initially recognises a lease liability for the obligation to make lease payments and a nght -of-use asset
for the right to use the underlying asset for the lease term. :

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments

- include fixed payments, purchase options at exercise price (where payment is reasonably certain), expected amount of residual
value guarantees, termination option penalties (where payment is con51dered reasonably certain) and variable lease payments
that depend on an index or rate. .

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease incentives
recelved the Group’s initial direct costs (e g., commissions) and an estimate of restoranon removal and dismantling costs.

Subsequent measurement

After the commencement date, the Gfeup measures the lease liability by:

(a)  Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;

(b) Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

(¢) - Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in substance
fixed lease payments or on the occurrence of othér specific events. '

Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term is the amount that produces a constant periodic rate of interest

‘on the remaining balance of the lease liability. Interest charges are included in finance cost in the income statement, unless the

costs are included in the carrying amount of another asset applying other applicable standards. Variable lease payments not

included in the measurement of the lease liability, are included in operating expenses in the perlod in which the event or
condmon that triggers them arises. . .

The related right-of-use asset is accounted for using the Cost model in IAS 16 and depreciated and charged in accordance with

- the depreciation requirements of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment as disclosed in the accounting policy for Property,
Plant and Equipment. Adjustments are made to the carrying value of the right of use asset where the lease liability is re-
measured in accordance with the above. Right of use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 Impalrmem of
assets as disclosed in the accounting policy in impairment. :
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Notcs to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)
1 Accounting policies (continued)
Lcases (continued)

Lease modifications

If a lease is modified, the modified contract is evaluated to determine whether it is or contains a lease. If a lease continues to
exist, the lease modification will result in either a separate fease or a change in the accounting for the existing lease.

" The modification is accounted for as a separate lease if both:

(a) . The modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets; and
(b)  The consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropnate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

If both of these conditions are met, the lease modification results in two separate leases, the unmodified original lease and a
separate lease. The Group then accounts for these in line with the accounting policy for new leases. If either of the conditions
are not met, the modified lease is not accounted for as a separate lease and the consideration is allocated to the contract and the
lease liability is re- measured using the lease term of the modiﬁed lease and the discount rate as determlned at the effective date
of the modification. .

For a modification that fully or partially decreases the scope of the léase (e.g., reduces the square footage of leased space),
IFRS 16 réquires a lessee to decrease the carrying amount of the right-of-use. asset to. reflect partial or full termination of the
lease. Any difference between those adjustments is recognised in profit or loss at the effective date of the modification.

For all other lease modifications which are not accounted for as a separate lease, IFRS 16 requires the lessee to recognise the
amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the correspondmg right-of-use asset w1thout affecting
profit or-loss. .

Short term and low value leases

The Group has made an accounting policy election, by class of underlying asset, not to recognise lease assets and lease
liabilities for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (i.e., short-term leases). -

Lease payments on short term leases are accounted for on a straight line bases over the term of the lease or other systematic
basis if considered more appropriate. Short term lease payments are included in operating expenses in the income statement.

Sub leases

If an underlymg asset is re-leased by the Group to a third party and the Group retains lhe primary obligation under the original
‘lease, the transaction is deemed to be a sublease. The Group continues to account for the original lease (the head lease) as a
lessee and accounts for the sublease as a lessor (intermediate lessor). When the head lease is a short term lease, the sublease is
classified as an operating lease. Otherwise, the sublease is classified using the classification criteria applicable to Lessor
Accounting in IFRS .16 by reference to the right-of-use asset in the head lease (and not the underlying asset of the head lease).

After classification lessor accounting is applied to the sublease.

Critical accounting judgements and estimates

Intangible assets - Goodwill

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. Its recoverable amount is measured with reference to a value in use model, being
the present value of the future cash flows before interest and tax obtainable as a result of the asset’s (or asset’s cash generating
unit) continued use. These cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that represents the current market risk-free
rate and the risks inherent in the asset. The assumptions relating to future cash flows, estimated growth rates and discount rates
dre based on business forecasts and therefore inherently include an element of management judgement. Future events could
cause the assumptions used in these lmpairments tests to change which fay in turn mean future impairments to be recognised.
Please refer to note 11 for further details.
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Notes to the fi nancial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (contmued)

2 Financial risk management
- Financial risk factors

The group’s opérations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include pﬁce risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The group has in place a risk management programme that seeks to limit the adverse effects on the
financial performance of the group by momtonng the foregoing risks.

(@) Marketrisk
(i) Price risk

The group is not exposed to commodity price risk as a result of its operations nor is the group exposed to equity securities price
* risk as it holds no listed equity investments. '

(i) Interest rate risk

The group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings'whlch are a combination of overdrafts, bank borrowings, term loans, loans
from related parties and finance lease liabilities (excluding lease liabilities arising on the adoption of IFRS 16). Interest bearing
assets consist of short-term-bank deposits. Borrowings at variable rates expose the group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the group to fair value interest rate risk. The group manages these risks by a mixture of variable
interest rates on overdrafts, bank borrowings and loans from related parties linked to SONIA/LIBOR or UK Bank of England
base rate and fixed rate interest on the group’s finance lease liabilities. The interest rate is monitored on a regular basis with
reference to movements in global interest rates and the potential impact upon the group’s cost of borrowing.

_ If average interest rates over the year had mcreased/decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, the fmancnal
statements would have been impacted as follows:

2021 ' 2020

Impact on " -+ Impacton '
‘post-tax . Impact on . post-tax Impact on
profits equity - profits . equity
. : ) £°000 £°000 £:000 £000
Interest rates increase by 1% ' 144y (144) ' (254) (254)
Interest rates decrease by 1% . 144 144 254 254

(iii)  Foreign exchange risk

- While the greater part of the group’s revenues and expenses are denominated in UK pound sterling, the group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk in the normal course of business in its overseas operations, principally on sales in US dollars and in Euros.
Group policy is to minimise the exposure of overseas subsidiaries to transaction risk by matching local currency income and
costs. While the group has not used financial instruments to date to hedge foreign exchange exposure, this position is kept
constantly under review.

If the US dollar had weakened / strengthened by 10% against the UK pound sterling spot rate on 30 September with all other
variables held constant, the financial statements would have been impacted as follows: .

2021 . : 2020
_Impact on " Impact on
post-tax Impact on post-tax Impact on
profits © equity profits equity
. . £000 £°000 £°000 ~ £000
US dollar weakens by 10% against UK pound sterling (5,846) (5,846) (4,046) . (4,046)

US dollar strengthens by 10% against UK pound sterling 7,145 7,145 4,945 . 4,945

The figures above reflect retranslation of the group’s investment in foreign subsidiaries. The dire_ctdrs do not regard the group’s
foreign exchange exposure on sales in Euro as significant.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continugd)

2 Financial risk management (continued).
(b)  Creditrisk

The group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before sales are made. Credit
control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
The amount of exposure to individual customers is subject to limits, which are reassessed regularly by the Board. Credit risk also
arises from cash and cash equivalents with banks and financial 1nst1tut10ns Banking arrangements are reviewed and regularly
reassessed by the. board

()  Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity reserve (compnsmg
undrawn borrowing facility and cash and cash equxvalents) on the basis of expected cash flow. In addition, the group’s liquidity
management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to
meet these; monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against mternal and external regulatory requnrements and malntalnlng debt
financing plans.

'

3 Capital risk management

The group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the  group may adjust the amount of dividends pand to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt/net funds divided bj/ total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (current and non-current) as shown in the group balance sheet less cash and cash

equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the group balance sheet plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at 30 September were as follows:

2021 2020

Group : £ £A
Total borrowings (note 18) ' . : 71,816,404 85,449,335

" Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 17) (115,088,844) (77,691,180)
Net (funds)/debt ' ' (43,272,440 7,758,155
Total equity ) 549,028,952 489,602,133
Total capital _ 505,756,512 497,360,288

Gearing ratio ) . : : ' (8.6)% 1.6%

The group’s strategy is to maintain an appropriate mix of debt and equity consistent with fulfilling long-term growth plans.

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group and company’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares.or sell assets to reduce debt.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

4 Revenue

Revenue is attributable to the group’s principal activities carried out in the United Kingdom, the United States of America, Asia
and the Republic of Ireland.

Timing of revenue is as follows

2021 2020
. ' £ £
Point in time ) 184,921,905 181,469,268
Over time’ ' . : 550,149259 495,784,372
Total ' : o 735,071,164 - 677,253,640
Disaggregation of revenue by geographical regionsAis as follows:
A v 2021 - 2020
Group ) . ) ' ) * I A £
" United Kingdom o 397,994,750 375,874,349
Europe : ' - 17,498,979 12,389,597
United States | ‘ 310,712,010 287,351,162
Other . 8,865,425 1,638,532
Total T 735,071,164 677,253,640,
Refer to note 16 for details of reléted contract assets.
S - Expenses by nature _
) 2021 , 2020
Group £ £
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress = - - 5,029,301 (1,916,996)
Raw matenals and consumables used . ' . 169,734,309 . 162,662,798
Employee benefits expense - net of amounts capxtahsed as software development 302,406,282 . 289,555,078
costs (note 7) . B _
Depreciation and amortisation ) ' 30,396,050 29,642,289
Depreciation on right of use assets ' 6,376,568 7,176,992
Transfer from deferred income (note 20) ‘ . © (2,318,559) (21 68,698)
Revenue grants A 4 ' : (1,884,714) (2,762,654)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equxpment and mtanglbles ' '83,876 ’ -
Expense on short term Ieases o ~ 316,215 345,298
Other expenses* ’ ’ © 134,788,274 126,786,010
Total cost of sales, distribution costs, administrative expenses and research : : .
and development expenditure 644,927,602 609,320,117

*Research and development expenditure of £9,734,017 (2020 £7,352,475) is includea within other expenses and is stated after
the deduction of £673,300 (2020: £973,868) of research and development tax credits. A further £5, I9O 141 (2020: £3, 856 209)
of research and development tax credits has been deducted from other expenses.
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.5 Expenses by nature (continued) A

Services provided by the group and'company’s auditoi's and its aésociatés

' During the year. the group (including its overseas subsudlanes) obtained the following servnces from the group’s auditor and its

associates: .
2021 2020

Group o : 4 . B _ £ . £
Fees payable to the group’s auditors for the audxt of parent company and ) .
consolidated financial statements ' ©. 42,125 34,294
Fees payable to the group’s audltors and its assocnates for other services: ' i :

- the audit of the company’ 's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation ‘ 346,980 . 291,586
-~ tax Services ' . ) . . 218,680 221,689

T other services o _ . ,' : - 235,807 ' 17,800

6  Finance costs - net

. . 2021 2020
Group : T o - Y £
Interest e'xpense: ) ' )
Interest payable on bank borrowings : ] o A : (512,149) . (821,782
Interest payable on related party loans _ ' ' E ' ' - (737 (5,366)
Interest hayable on finance leases ' ' 4 : - ) . (3,94) ' (5,952)
Interest p.ayable on IFRS16 leases. ' . (1,907,430) (2,216,570)
Foréign exchange loss on financing activities ' : o (6,350,031-j (1,052,104)
Other finance costs » , . ' (596,151) (296,235)
Finance costs ) o - (9,370,422) (4,398,009)
Interést income: . ' , ] - ‘ _
Triterest receivable on bank deposits' . - ) ' 2,812 " 14,060 ‘
Other finance income . o ‘ : ’ 6,442 -
F}nance income - . 9,254 14,060
. Finance costs - net o _ A , . (9,361,168) (4,383,949)
7 Employees and directors «
- Grouwp Company
2021 2020 Co2021 - 2020
£ S £ £
Staff costs durmg the year: . .
Wages and salaries (including amounts capntahsed 265,072,148 - 257,896,746 A 20,176,127 18,176,167 :
as software development costs) S . :
Social security costs - ’ 22,768,251 21,702,171 2,163,730 1,933,953
_ Other pension costs (note 26) T 8,715,100 7,943,844 843,300 771,_946
* Share based payment costs (note 29) 6,337,336 2,549,015 1,398,240 " . 586,581

302,892,835 290,091,776 24,581,397 21,468,647 :
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7 Empldyees and directors (continued)

The wages and salary costs ingflude ‘£4,86,.(55A3 (2020: £536,698) of capitalised labour costs.

Group Company

2021 - 2020 2021 . 2020
_ ) " Number - Number - Number. " Number -
Average monthly num.ber of persons employed .
(including directors) during the year by activity: ‘ ) g :
Production i : 4,490 4234 < - -
Sales and marketing : ' 228 239 - o -
Administration _ : ' 980 I 428 404
Research and development ‘ _ 85 55 . .
5,783 T 5466 428 404
" Key managément compensation : R .

_ ) A _ ‘ 2021. - 2020
Group _ ' - : N £
Salaries and 6ther short-‘term employee benefits - . : 9,385,715 9,259,426

. Pension costs - defined contributions plans ) ’ o o 149,384 © 182,479
The key management compensatién given above includes directors and senior managers. i
: v o 2021 A . 2020
. Directors ' a : o £ £
Aggregate emoluments : . ' 2,453,751 - 2,430,283
Pension costs - defined contributions plans ‘ . ' . © 31,880 - _ 60,220

Three (2020: four) directors have retirement benefits accruing under a defined 60ntribution plan. Three (202(5: four) directors
have exercised phantom share options in the year. - - ’

2021 2020
Highest paid director . ) - L Y ) £
Aggregate emoluments S ' - 813,117 . 793,247

Thé highest paid director exercised phantom share options in the year and during the previous year.
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thes to the financial statements for the'year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

8 ™ Income tax expense

2020

2021
£ £
Current tax ; A
UK corporation tax 4,141,152 7,406,391
Overseas tax . 3,207,808 . 685,061 -
Adjustment in respect of previous periods (867,904) (317,156)
Total current tax expense 6,481,056 7,774,296
Deferred tax . ‘
Origination and brever'sal of temporary differences 5,159,162 2,799,287
Changes in tax laws and rates 4,146,836 -
'Adjdstment in respect of previoﬁs périods ’ 789,621 ' 109,250
Total deferred tax charge (note 14) 10,095,619 2,908,537
. Income tax expense ' 16,576,675 10,682,833

The tax on the group’s profit before income tax differs from (2020: differs from) the theoretical amount that would arise using

the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

2021 2020

. e £
Profit before income tax 80,782,394 63,549,574
Profit before income tax at the UK standard rate of 19% (2020: 19%) 15,348,655 12,074,419

" Effects of: '

. Expenses not deductible/(Income not taxable) for tax purposes 1,131,561 (440,254)
Effect of changes in overseas tax rates 8,700 (187,899)
Movement in deferred tax not provided (3,066,692) (1,230,218)
Group relief not paid © 46,526 48,520 .
Adjustments in respect of previous périods (78,283) (207,906) o
Changes in tax laws and rates 4,118,017 923;765
Research and development tax credits (382,060) (297,594)
Super deduction (549,749) ‘ ! -
Income tax expense 16,576,675 10,682,833
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Notes‘to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

9 Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures,

fittings
Assets in the and

Land and course of Plant and computer Motor )

buildings construction machinery  equipment vehicles - Total
Group ' £ £ £ £ £ £
Cost . ' _‘ ‘ .
At 1 October 2019 - 257',544,289 6,693,410 134,373,554 62,543,313 435,102 461,589,668
Transfers 272,242 (1,436,648) 1,094,435 68,649 - (1,322)
Additions ) : 9,188,085 13,183,136 19,179,679 5,766,187 16,8 17 37,333,904
Disposals ' ' - - (424,499) . (15,926) - (440,425)
Exchange adjustment _ (4,107,955) (4,648,746) (6,663,991) (5,403,472')A ‘ (69,693) (20,893,857)
At 30 September 2020 ~ 262,896,661 3,791,152 147,559,178 62,958,751 382,226 ‘ 477,587,968
Transfers _ " (1,716,580)  (2,650,705) 4,319,235 48,050 - -
Additions 4,138,315 15,203,660 20,148,733 7,360,932 151,369 47,003,009
Disposals (3,598) (22,629) (196,802) (919,158 (82,954) (1,225,141)
Exchange'adjustment =~ - (5,803,594) (3,533) (2,433,628)  (1,354,811) (10,748)  (9,606,314)
At 30 September 2021 259,511,204 16,317,945 169,396,716 68,093,764 439,893 513,759,522
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 October 2019 53,1'39,016 - 73,694,197 42,006,194 338,1.86' 169,177,593
Charge for the year . 5,422,665 - 10,094,181. 5,560,071 34,607 21,111,524
Disposals . . . » - - (418,933) (7,642) » 4 - (426,575)
Exchange adjustment (4,511,565) - (7,990,998)  (4,806,723) (64,135)  (17,373,421)
At 30 September 2020 " 54,050,116 - 75,378,447 42,751,900 308,658 l72,489,121
Charge for the year 5,401 189 - 11,526,371 ‘A 5,243,941 44 315 22',215,81 6
Disposals : .. 48 - (96,385) (888,258) (82,954) (1,067,645)
Exchange adjustment ‘ (1,039,060) - (1,039,952) (844,204) (9,141) (2,932,357)
At 30 September 2021 58,412,197 - 85,768,481 46,263,379 - 260,878 190,704,935 °
Net book amount .
At 30 September 2021 201,099,007 16,317,945 83,628,234 - 21,830,386 179,015 323,054,587
At 30 Seplember 2020 208,846,545 3,791,152 72,180,731 20,206,851 - 73,568 305,098,847
At 30 September 2019 204,405,273 6,693,410 60,679,357 20,537,119 96,916 292,412,075

Borrowings totalling £15,478,446 (2020: £25,723,442) are secured against the above assets (note 18).

interest costs of £nil (2020: £nil) were capitalised dunng the year. Cumulative interest capitalised pre accumulated
depreciation at 30 September 2021 was £1,082,459 (2020: £1,082,459).

Depreciation expense is included within administrative expenses in the income statement.
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| Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (contmued)

9 Property, plant and equipment (contmued)

‘Assets held under finance leases had the following net book amount:.

2020

2021
Total Total.
" Group £ ) £
" Cost 156,482 2,930,914
. Accumulated depreciation (156,482) (2,930,914)
‘Net book amount » . .
_Fixtur‘es,
o fittings and )
Land and Plantand.  ~computer Motor :
buildings . machinery equipment vehicles Total
Company £ £ R £ £
Cost . - )
At 1 October 2019 4,033,801 3,111,336 10,112,994 102,289 17,360,420
Additions 14,710 1,135,173 750,128 8,225 " 1,908,236
stposals . - - (8,000) - . (8,000)
- At 30 September 2020 4,048,511 4,246,509 10,855,122 | 1 10,.5I4. 19,260,656
Additions 53,535 3,209,102 ' 802,328 i9,629 4,084,594
Dispéséls (3,598) (44,471) (33,380) . (2,750) (84,199)
At 30 September 2021 4,098,448 7,411,140 11,624,07‘0 127,393 23,261,051
* Accumulated depreciatioh : .
At 1 October 2019 363,240 - 1,780,580 5,245,843 65,385. 7,455,048
Charge for the yeer 50,543 165,002 1,117,605 11,640 1,344,790
At 30 September 2020 413,783 1,945,582 6,363,448 77,025 8,799,838
Charge for the year 50,595 147,824 - 987,706 12,315 1,198,440
Dlsposals *.(48) (2,965) (2,782) (2,750) (8,545)
At 30 September 2021 464,330 2,090,441 7,348,372 86,590 ‘.9,989,733
Net book amount A )
At 30 September 2021 3,634,118 5,320,699 . - 4,275,698 40,803 13,271,318
- At 30 September 2020 3,634,728 . 2,300,927 4,491,674 33,489 . 10,460,818
At 30 September 2019 3,670,561 1,330,756 4,867,151 36,904 9,905,372

Borrowings totalling £12,678,783 (2020: £21 ,828;446) are secured against the above assets (note 18). }

Depreciation expense is included within administrative expenses in the income statement.

)
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Notes to thé financial statements for the year ended 30'September 2021 (continued)

10  Right of use assets

Fixtures,
fittings and

Land and Plant and computer Motor . .

buildings machinery . equipment vehicles Total
Group £ £ £ £ : £
Cost ' ' :
At 30 September 2019 - - .- - - -
Adoption of IFRS 16 55,703,753 287,210 753,829 693,467 57,438,259
At 1 October 2019 55,703,753 287,210 . 753,829 693,467 57.438,259. -
Additions 6,258,948 46,650 183,537 208,773 6,697,908
Disposals ' (2,881,559) (8,599) (67,435) (1,663)  (2,959,256)
Exchange adjustment (1,319,049) 3,552 (10,970) (10,029) (1:336,496)
At 30 September 2020 57,762,093 328,813 858,961 890,548 59,840,415 .
Additions 4,092,777 152,070 267,426 282,898 4,795,171
Disposals (450,576) (3,584)  (101,248) - (148,923) (704,331)
Exchange adjusime_nt (1,880,596) (7,720) (21,741) 9,891)  (1,919,948) ‘
At 30 September 2021 59,523,698 469,579 ' 1,003,398 1,014,632 62,011,307
Accumulated depreciation
At 30 September 2019 and 1 October 2019 - - - - . -
Charge for the year . 6,381,693 134,451 344,862 315,986 7,176,992
Transfer - v . - - -
Disposals (574,343) v (8,599) (37,840) (1,663) (622,445)
Exchange adjustment (65,669) 1,535 C 241 (728) ‘ (64,621)
At 30 September 2020 5,741,681 127,387 307,263 313,595 6,489,926
Charge for the year 5,665,360 “143;156 283,889 284,163 6,376,568
Transfer 22,021 ' - (22,021) . -
Disposals (234,724) (3,584) (101,248) (98,713) (438,269)
Exchange adjustment (204,295) (2,410) (10,812) (3,336) (220,853)
At 30 September 2021 10,990,043 264,549 457,071 495,709 © 12,207,372
Net book amount '
At 30 September 2021 48,533,655 205,030 546,327 518,923 49,803,935
At 30 September 2020 52,020,412 201,426 551,698 576,953 53,350,489
At 30 September 2019 - - - - - -

Depreciation expense is included within administrative expenses in the income statement. The total cash outflow in the year in

respect of lease payments associated with right of use assets was £6,236,288 (2020: £9,940,568).
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

10 Right of use assets (continued)

Fixtures,
fittings and
Land and ‘computer Motor. : .
buildings  equipment Vehicles Total
Company £ £ £ £
Cost V
At 30 September 2019 - - - -
Adoption of IFRS 16 3,611,823 30,682 - 156,714 3,799,219
At 1 October 2019 3,611,823 30,682 156,714 3,799,219
Additions - 4,016 51,625 55,641
" Disposals o - (729) (923) (1,652)
At 1 October 2020 3,611,823 33,969 207,416 3,853,208
Additions - - 97,512 97,512
Disposals ' " (59,369) (3,063) (28,274) . '(90,706)
At 30 September 2021 3,552,454 30,906 - 276,654 3,860,014
Accumulated depreciation
* At 30 September 2019 and 1 October 2019 - - - -
-Charge for the year 300,960 10,097 88,320 399,377
Disposals - (729 (923) (1,652)
At 1 October 2020 300,960 9,368 87,397 397,725
Charge for the year 300,960 9,353 79,418 389,731
Disposals - (3,063) (28,273) (31,336)
At 30 September 2021 601,920 - 15,658 138,542 756,120
Net book amount .
At 30 September 2021 2,950,534 15,248 138,112 3,103,894
At 30 Septembef 2020 3,310,863 24,601 120,019 - 3,455,483

At 30 September 2019

.

The total cash outflow in the year in respect of lease payments associated with right of use assets was £1 945 421 (2020:

. £1,129,401).



Almac Group Limited B 4 o ‘ 46

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

11  Goodwill

: Grdup ' v o ' | . . B £
Cost . : . . .
At'1 October 2019 ‘ Lo I 89,180,898
On acquisition ‘ ~ , . (34,729)
Exchange adjustment A , ) : ‘ (1,399.,908)
At 30 September 2020 . e ‘ ) © 87,746,261.
Exchange adjustment o - » h (1,511,360)

At 30 September 2021 . . . 86,234,901

Accumulated amortisation and impairment

At 1 October 2019, 30 September 2020 and at 30 September 2021 . 4,910,114

Net book amount

At 30 September 2021 81,324,787
At 30 September 2020 : ) 82,836,147

At 30 September 2019 ] 84,270,784

Clinical Services

£57.3m (2020: £58.7m) of goodwill relates to the group’s clinical services business. The group’s clinical services business,
comprising clinical services businesses in Almac Group (UK) Limited and Almac Group Incorporated, is regarded as.a cash-
generating unit (CGU). The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value in‘use calculations. These calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management and covering a five year period. Growth
rates of 2 to 8% (2020: 2 to 8%) with a consistent gross margin were used for the five year period. Cash flows beyond the five
" year period are established using estimated growth rates of 2% (2020: 2%), which reflects the group’s investment strategy and
expansion. Management determined budgeted gross margins based on past performance and its- expectations of market
developments. The discount rate used of 11% (2020: 11%) is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the group. There is
sufficient headroom in the impairment calculation. :

POA Pharma Scandinavia AB

£12.8m (2020: £12.8m) of goodwill relates to the Group’s acquisition of POA Pharma Scandinavia AB (“POA”), a 100%
subsidiary of Galen Limited incorporated in Sweden. This company is also considered to be a CGU, The recoverable amount
was determined based on a value-in-use calculation which incorporates pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
an estimated growth rate. Key assumptions applied in this review were as follows:

The rate of forecast sales growth which is on average 11%;
Gross margin assumption of ¢50%;

Long term growth rate of 2%; and

An applied pre-tax discount rate of 7.5%.

Our modelling shows that forecast sales can fall short by approximately 10% in each year before a goodwill impairment would
be required. Should forecast sales drop by 15% in each year an impairment of £4.5m would be required.

Our modelling also shows that forecast gross margins can drop by approximately 5% before a goodwill impairment would be
required. Should forecast gross margins reduce by 7.5% an impairment of £4.4m would be required.

The remaining goodwill has arisen on the acquisition of other subsidiaries and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued) .

12 . Other intangible assets .

¢

Product Computer

licences software Total
Group - £ £ £
Cost ‘ ' ' o
Atl October 2019 30,134,239 76,760,676 106,894,915
Transfers - 1322 11,322
Additions 408,632 5.639.643 6,048,275
Exchange adjustment (531,704) (2,072,450) (2,604,154)
At 30 September 2020 30,011,167 80,329,191 110,340,358
Additions ‘ 168,015 8,501,737 8,669,752
Disposals - (45,836) (45,836)
Exchange adjustmént (254,164) (1,013,145) (1,267,309)
At 30 September 2021 29,925,018 87 ,771,947. 117,696,965
Accumulated amortisation . )
At 1 October 2019 25,946,139 50,038;401' 75,984,540
Amortisation in the year 1,216,056 7,314,709 8,530,765
Exchange adjustment (449,915) (1,887,293) (2,337,208)
At 30 September 2020 26,712,280 55,465,817 _ 82,178,097
Amortisation in the year 731,365 7,448,869 8,180,234
Disposals - (17,236) (17,236)
Exchange adjustment - (152,858) T(782,354) (935,212) |
At 30 September 2021 ' 27,290,787 62,115,096 89,405,883
Net book amount . 4
At 30 September 2021 2,634,231 25,656,851 28,291,082
At 30 September 2020 | 3,298,887 24,863,374 28,162,261
At 30 September 2019 4,188,100 26,722,275 30,910,375

Amortisation expense is included within administrative expenses in the income statement.
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12 Other intangible assets (continued) i

. . Computer
: . software’
Company £
Cost . ‘

" At 1 October 2019 . | 6,244,744
Additions - 788,791 .
At30 September 2020 7,033,535
Additions t 2,277,865
Disposals ‘ L (33,000)
At 30 September 2021 9,278,400
Accumulated amortisation
At I'October 2019 5,089,033
Amortisation in the year 619,256

A1 30 September 2020 - 5,708,289
Amortisation in the year 633,772
Disposals o 4(4,400)
At 30 September 2021 6,337,661
Net book amount
At 30 September 2021 2,940,739
At 30 September 2020 1,325,246
At 30 September 2019 1,155,711

Amortisation expense is inclﬁded within admini§trative expenses jn the income statement.

13 Investments in subsidiaries

" Company £
Cost o :
At | October 2019 and 1 October 2020 177,312,970
Additions A 55,946
At 30 September 2021 177,368,916
Provisions_ for impairment . . :

At 1 October 2019, 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2021 1,692,057
Net book amount

At 30 September 2021 175,676,859
At 30 S¢ptember 2020 175,620,913
At 30 September 201.9 175,620,913
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13 ~Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
. . . . . )
- Investments in subsidiary undertakings are recorded at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration paid, less any
provisions for impairments. The subsidiaries of the group at 30 September 2021- were: .

o Proportion of Proportion of
) . ordinary ordinary
} Country of . shares held shares held

Name . ’ incorporation Nature of business by the parent _ by the group

Almac Discovery Limited Northern Ireland’ Discovery and :

: development of : 100% 100%
innovative approaches a
to the treatment of

_ : . cancer .

Almac Diagnostic Services Limited Northemn [reland! Development of cancer ’ 1% 99%

diagnostics and )
- microarray based data
analysis
Almac Diagnostic Services LLC - United States of Development of cancer* 0% 100%
America'? diagnostics and . . C-
’ microarray based data
R ) analysis )
Almac Sciences Limited . ~ Northem Ireland! . Provision of custom - - 0% 100%
’ : chemical synthesis
services :
Almac Sciences LLC United States of Provision of custom 0% 100%
America'® chemical synthesis '
. services ) '
Almac Sciences (Scotland) Limited - Scotland® ’ Provision of custom- - ' 0% 100%
o chemical synthesis
services
Almac Clinical Services Limited . Northern Ireland' Provision of servicesto . ' 0% ) 100%
’ pharmaceutical and '
biotechnology -
companies .
Almac Clinical Services LLC * "United States of Provision of services to 0% 100%
: America'? pharmaceutical and
' biotechnology
: ‘ . companies
Almac Clinical Technologies LLC United States of Management of clinical L 0% 100%
. America'® trials drug supply X :
Almac Clinical Technologies Limited . Northem Ireland’ ‘Management of clinical 0% s 100%
. : trials drug supply .

Almac Pharma Services Limited ‘Northern Ireland! Manufacture of © 0% 100%
pharmaceutical '

. products . :

Almac Pharma Services LLC . United States of Manufacture of . 0% 100%

America'? pharmaceutical -
: ! products :

Galen Limited _ Northern Ireland' Distribution and sale of 50% - 100%
pharmaceutical

C . products :
Almac Central Management LLC United States of - Central administrative 0% 100%
America'® . services for the US )
. ‘ group '

Almac Pharmaceutical Services PTE Ltd Singapore” Provision of services to 0% 100%
pharmaceutical and .
biotechnology

. companies )

Almac Pharmaceutical Services KK Japan® Provision of services to 0% 100%

pharmaceutical and
biotechnology
companies . ,
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13 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of Proportion of

biotechnology
companies

. ordinary ordinary,
. Country of shares held shares held
Name incorporation Nature of business . by the parent by the group .
Almac Group (Asia) PTE Lud Singapore’ Holding company 100% 100%
Almac Group (UK) Limited Northern Ireland’ Holding company 100% 100%
‘Almac Group Incorporated United States of Holding company 100% 100%
America'?
" Almac (No. 2) Limited Northern Ireland' Dormant company 100% 100%
Galen US Incorporated United States of Distribution and sale of 0% . 100%
: America'® pharmaceutical
. products
Novis Pharma Limited Northern Ireland’ Dormant company 0% 100%
Napsco Limited Northemn Ireland ! Dormant company 0% 100%
CTS Analytical Limited Northern Ireland! Dormant company 0% . 100%
Syngal Limited Northern Ireland! Dormant company 0% 100%
Quchem Limited - Northern lrelaﬁd' Dormant company 0% 100%
Almac Diagnostics (2004) Limited Northern Ireland' ‘Dormant companyb " 0% " 100%
Almac Trustees Limited Northern Ireland' Holding company 0% 100%
2007 Gal Limited Northern Ireland' Dormant company 0% 100% "
InterGal Pharma Limited - Northern Ireland’ Dormant company 0% 100%
Almac (No. 1) Limited Northern Ireland' Dormant company .0% 100%
Nelag Limited Northem Ireland' Dormant company 0% . 100%
Chargelink Limited England® Dormant'company 0% 100%
Galen Pharmaceuticals Limited " England® Dormant company- 0% 100%
Galen Healthcare Liniited England® Dormant company 0% 100%
Galen Rhodes Limited England® Dormant company 0% 100%
Galen Specialty Pharma US LLC United States of Dormant company 0% 100%
: America'? . ’
Almac Realty Holdings LLC United States of Holding company 0% 100%
_ America'® - . )
Clinical Trial Services Incorporated United States of Dormant company 0% 100%
: America'> .
Applied Clinical Concepts Incorporated United States of Dormant company 0% 100%
America' '
Arran Chemical Company Limited Republic of Ireland?  Manufacture of 0% 100%
pharmaceutical :
. products )
Ventureland Limited Republic of Ireland?  Dormant company 0% 100%
Almac Pharmaceuticals Group (Ireland) Republic of [reland*  Holding company 100% 100%
Limited ) ' :
Almac Pharma Services (Ireland) Limited Republic of Ireland®  Provision of services to 0% 100%
. pharmaceutical and
biotechnology
companies )
Almac Clinical Services (Ireland) Limited Republic of Ireland®  Provision of services to 0% 100%.
pharmaceutical and
biotechnology
. : E : companies .
Bioclin Research Laboratories Limited - Republic of Ireland®*  Dormant Company 0% 100%
. Almac Sciences (Ireland) Limited Republic of Provision of services to 0% 100%
Ireland' pharmaceutical and
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13. Investments in subsidiaries (continugd)

Proportion of '

Proportion of

. ordinary ordinary
Country of shares held shares held
Name. incorporation Nature of business by the parent by the group
Camla (No. 1) Pharma Ireland Limited Republic of Ireland Provision of services to ) 0% . 100%
’ pharmaceutical and :
biotechnology
- ' companies :
POA Pharma Scandinavia AB Sweden'? Distribution and sale of o 0% 100%
' pharmaceutical
products
'The registered office of these entities is Almac House, 20 Seagoe Industrial Estate, Craigavon BT63 5QD
The registered office of these entities is Units 1-3 Monksland Industrial Estate, Athlone, Co. Roscommon, N37 DN24
¥The registered office of these entities is Finnabair Industrial Estate, Dundalk Co. Louth, A91 P9KD
4The registered office of these entities is Riverside One, Sir John Rogerson’s Quay, Dublin 2, D02 X576
5The registered office of this entity is Suite'2, Stafford House, Strand Road, Portmarnock Co Dublin, D13 H525
The registered office of these entities is Broadwalk House, S Appold Street, London, EC2A 2HA
"The registered office of these entities is Lee & Lee, 50 Raffles Place, #60-00, Singapore Land Tower, Singapore, 048623
¥The registered office of this entity is Tokyo Club Building, 11F, 3-2-6 Kasumigaski, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 100-0013
9The registered office of this entity is 4th Floor, Saltire Court, 20 Castle Terrace, Edinburgh, Lothian, EH1 2EN
0The registered office of these entities is Corporation Service Company, 2711 Centreville Rd, Suite 400, Wilmington,
Delaware, DE 19808
"The registered office of this entity is CSC, 103 Foulk Road, Suite 103, Wilmington, DE 19803 - 3742
"2The registered office of this entity is 011 Allen Building, Durham, NC 27708
3The registéred office of this entity is Ebbe Lieberathsgatan 21, 40022 Gothenburg, Box 24026, Sweden
'“The registered office of this entity is IDA Busmess and Technology Park Garrycastle, Athlone, Co. Westmeath N37 X061,
Ireland .
14 Deferred income tax
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:
: Assets ’ Liabilities Total
'2021 2020. 2021 2020 2021 2020
Group £ £ £ ’ £ £ £
At 1 October 706,543 2,054,227 - (12,960,496)  (11,596,508) (12,253,953) . (9,542,281)
Exchange adjustment 407) - 54,456 66,870 54,049 66,870
Credited/(charged) to the - (11,971) (911,081) (10,083,648) I¢ ,997,456) (10,095,619) (2,908,537)
income statement ‘ -
Arising on adoptlon of IFRS - .(535,013) - 665,008 - 129,995°
16 . .
Transfer from asset to - Y8,410 - (98,410) - = - -
liability. )
At 30 September 694,165 706,543 (22,989,688)  (12,960,496) (22,295,523)  (12,253,953)
12021 2020
Company £ £
(Liability) / asset at 1 October -(98,410) 774,260
Charged to the income statement (1,013,447) (317,186)
Arising on adoption of IFRS 16 - (555,484)
Liability at 30 September (1,111,857) (98,410)
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. 14  Deéferred income tax (continued) '

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year, without takmg into consnderanon the offsetting of

balances within the same tax Junsdlctnon is as follows:

89,540

Accelerated Other
capital - Tax temporary
, . allowances ‘losses differences Total
Group - deferred tax (liabilities)/assets o .o £ £ £ £
At | October 2019 ’ . - (20,520,049) 6,291,762 4,686,006 (9,542,281)
Credned/(charged) to the income statement . 122,764 (3,354,362) 323,06! ) (2,908,537)
Arising on the adoption IFRS 16 597,886 (8,280) (459,611) © 129,995 '
Exchange adjustments . - 66,870 - 66,870
At | October 2020 - o (19,799,399) 2,995,990 4,549,456  (12,253,953)
Charged to the income statement o (7,397,872) (723,130) ©=  (1,974,617) " (10,095,619) "
Exchange adjustments _ » . 54,049 - 54,049.
CAt30 September 2021 . S 27,197 ,271) 2,326,909 2,574,839  (22,295,523)
Other  Accelerated
temporary. . capital .
: differences allowances - Total
Company - deferred tax assets/(liabilities) . £ £ £
.At 1 October 2019 (270,972) 1,045,232 774,260
Charged to the income statement (70,498) (246;688) (317,186)
Arising on adoption of IFRS 16 (503,593) (51,891) (555,484)
At 1 October 2020 (845,063) 746,653 (98,410)
Charged to the income statement (356,334) (657,113) (1,013,447)
At 30 September 2021 (1,201,397) (1,111,857)

ja
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14  Deferred income tax (continued)

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows: ) :
' i . Group ~ ' " “ Company

2021 2020 . 2021 . 2020
i £ ’ - £ £ £
Deferred tax assets: ) -~
- to be recovered afte} mdre than 12 months ' 694,165' ) 706,543 v ‘ 89.540. 7.46,653.
S - " 694,165 706,543 89,540 746,653
" Deferred tax liabilities: S N § .
- to be recovered after more than 12 months (22,989,688) (12,960.496)  (1,201,397) ~  (845,063).
. A (22,989,688) (12,960,496) (1,201,397) . (845,063)
) Deferred tax liabilities — net ’ R T (22,295,523)  (12,253,953) (1,111,857) © (98,410)

.Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that the realisation.of the related tax benefit through future taxable
benefits is probable. Deferred incomg tax assets not recognised are comprised as follows:

"Group . 'Company
2021 . 2020 2021 © 2020
. £ ' £ £ ' £
Accelerated capital allowances ) . . 27,413 41A,667 . 27413 — .41,667
. Tax losses : 4,391,513 8555750 - .
Other temporary differences . 279,314 181,867 - -

4,698,240 8,779,284 - 27,413 41,667

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the above as in the opinion of the directors it may not be recoverable in

" the foreseeable future. The potential deferred tax assets will be recognised when it can be regarded as more likely than not that
there will be sufficient taxable profits from which the tax losses, accelerated capital allowances and other temporary differences
can be deducted. - '

15 Inventories

‘ , , _ 2021 2020
_Group ' ) o . ) £ . - £
“Raw materials ‘ - 14,367,562 12326320

Work in progress o o o ‘ : - 1,969,578 2,855,659

Finished.goods B S , 11,096,462 15,284,428

27,433,602 - 30,466,407

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and inciuded in cost of sale.s amounted to £174,763,610 (2020: £'l 60,745,802).

‘During the year £565,732 of inventoryv provisions were reversed as they were not used (2020: £373,248). The amount reversed
has-been included in cost of sales. '
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16 Trade and other receivables

Group .+ Company -
2021 2020 2021 2020
Current ‘ : : £ R B IR 3
Trade receivables ' 135,689,953 123,879,666 - -
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (2,225,006). : (2,083,043) } - -

" Trade receivables (net) 133,464,947 121,796,623 ’ - -
Amounts owed by group undertakings (note 30) ) . - 251,576,645 . 266,057,266
Finance lease receivables : . . 1,071,274 1037014
Group relief receivable ’ - ‘ - 1,731,618 -
Other receivables _ S 1,346,567 5,721,223 811,894 742,165
Prepayments and accrued income . "35,856,824 N 33,835,145 4,038,365 3 3,092,732 ‘

176,668,338 161,352,991 259,229,796 © ~ 270,929,177

. Trade receivab‘les includes an amount of £3,621,359 (2020: £4,770,145) in respect of receivables subject to invoice discounting.

The fair values of trade and other receivables are not materially different from their carrying value. For the purposes of IFRS 9
“Financial instruments”, all of the group’s and parent company’s financial assets are classified as measured at amortised cost.

Group - . Company
. . 2021 - 2020 o 2021 2020
Non-Current o : Y £ £ SRR
Finance lease receivables - . - - '11,992,404 13;063,678

The finance lease receivables arise in respect of leases of property to other group undertakmgs The maturlty of the lease
recelvable amounts under these lease agreements is shown in the table below:

2021 2020

£. . %

Receivable in: ) .
2021 - o ' - - 1,472,568
2022 - ) . 1,472,568 1,472,568
2023 ’ ‘ _ ' ‘ C 1,472,568 1,472,568
2024 B v 1472568 1,472,568
2025 ' R - ‘ ‘ 1,472,568 1,472,568
2026 , ' . 1472568 1,472,568
Thereafter o - ' 7,974,411 7,974,411
‘ _ 15,337,251 16,809,819
Less: future interest.income . . (2,273,573) (2,709,127)
' 13,063,678 14,100,692
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16 Trade and other recelvables (continued)

The carrying amount of the group ’s and parent company s trade and other recervables are denominated in the following
currencies: .

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 , 2020
£ £ £ £

Currency . : )
UK pound sterling ’ 49,940,836 ' 60,386,342 113,069,201 113,583,152
USdollar . : ‘ 108,689,892 83707718 130,909,544 137,160,864
Euro : : . - 14,781,046 . 17,258,931 21,535,652 33,248,839
Swiss Franc : . 368,256 - - -
Singapore dollar - , : 2,036,905 - - © 4,630,441 Co-
Japanese yen - o 851403 - 1,077,362 -

176,668,338 161,352,991 271,222,200  ~283,992,855

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable above.

Trade receivables impaired and the amount of the impairment provision at 30 September 2021 was £2,225,006 (2020

£2,083,043). The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to invoices for which there is uncertamty over recoverability.
It was assessed that a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.” The trade receivables that were impaired were all -
overdue by more than two months.

. Y
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows: .
: Group ) . Company
2021 2020 © 2021 2020
) £ £ I £
AC1 October , 2,083,043 2356132 5 3
Exchange adjustment o ‘ : (61,291) (77,502) _ - . ) -
Provision for receivables impairment . . 965,535 768,974 - . -
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible =~ (158,317) (102,118) ‘ - B
Unused amounts reversed . ) (603,964)A - (862,443) . - -
At 30 September . . 2,225,006 2,083,043 - -

- The creation and release of the provision for impaired receivables has been included in administrative expenses in the income
statement. ' )

The group has recognised the following assets relatiiig (v contracts with customers (these are all included with accrued
income): ’

2021 2020

_ £ . %

Contract assets recognised at start of the year - V ' 20,166,405 14,185,652
Revenue recognised in prior years that was invoiced in the current year (19;628,569) (14,136,464)
Amounts re'cegnised in revenue in the current year that will be invoiced in future years 19,738,860 20,117,217
Balance at the end of the year ’ 20,276,696 20,166,405

Contract assets are expected to be invoiced in the year to 30 September 2022.
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16 Trade and other recelvables (continued)

The company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expecied-credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The group has therefore concluded that the expected loss
rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 12 months before 30 September and the
- corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. On that
basis, the loss allowance as at 30 September 2021 was deemed to be not materially different to that provision carried under IAS
39. The default rate on receivables is less than 1%. Receivables-are generally due for settlement within 30 days and are therefore
all classified as current and are within credit terms.

The group applies the practical expedient in IFRS 9 (which allows the group to measure impairment using the 12 mpnth Expected
Credit Loss model) in respect of amounts owed by group undertakings, for those balances that meet the following requirements:

e it-has a low risk of default; .

e the counterparty is considered, in the short term, to have a strong capacity to meet its obllganons in the near term; and
the group expects, in the longer term, that adverse changes in economic and business conditions might, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the counterparty to fulfil its obllgauons

For those balances where there is a higher risk ,of default the group follows the 3 stage approach within IFRS 9 to determine
lifetime expected credit losses. .

17  Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
' £ ‘ £ £ £
Cash at bank and in-hand 108,170,997 56,991,404 67,382,349 20,291,960
Short term deposits 6,917,847 20,699,776 - 14,002,160
115,088,844 77,691,180 67,382,349 34,294,120

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the cash flow statement:

‘Group Company
2021 - 2020 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
Cash and cash equivalents 115,088,844 77,691,180 67,382,349 34,294,120
Bank overdrafts (note 18) (77,796)  (5,141,093) - (5,000,000)

115,011,048 72,550,087 67,382,349 29,294,120
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18  Borrowings

Groub - Company

2021 2020 .2021 2020
Current £ £ £ . £
Bank overdrafts — secured . ’ 77,796 5,141,093 - . 5,000,000
Bank loans - secured (a) 2,172,685 4,938,950 1,380,873 3,943,916
Other loans — secured (b) - . 205,746 - 205,746
Amounts owed to group undertakings (c) (note 30) ‘ B ' - 324,037,051 279,795,313
Amounts owed to related parties (d) (note 30) - 178,590 . - 178,590
Finance lease obligations (e) . . 30,162 35,508 - - -
Lease liabilities arising from IFRS 16 ' ’ 6,651,608 6,086,256 1,422,030 1,372,018

8,932,251 16,586,143 326,839,954 290,495,583 -

Bank loans and overdrafts includes an amount of £nil (?020: £nil) in respect of receivables subject to invoice diséounting.

Group Company

) 2021 2020 © 22021 ’ 2020

Non-current : A £ £ £ £

Bank loans - secured (a) 13,173,633 15,347,813 11,297,910 12,678,784

Amounts owed to group undertakings (c) (note 30) - - 2,610,001 3,658,571
Finance lease obligations (e) ) 24,170 . 54,332 . - -

Lease liabilities arising from {FRS 16 " 49,686,350 53,461,047 15,016,625 16,364,020

. 62,884,153 68,863,192 28,924,536 32,701,375

Total borrowings ' 71,816,404 85,449,335 355,764,490 323,196,958

(a)

Bank loans consist of the following amounts which refer to Ioan agreements entered into in 2011 (amended in 2012, 2013,
2016 and 2021) and 2019:

Group:

O

(i)

A loan of $3.6m and an additional $1.2m advanced in 2012, which was fully repaid in March 2021. This loan was
repayable over 28 quarters commencing September 2011 with a review after 5 years in June 2016 and interest was
charged at LIBOR + margin. The review in June 2016 was completed and the remaining loan balance of £5. 6m
was repayable over 19 quarters commencing September 2016.
_A loan of £4.0m advanced in October 2019. This loan is repayable over 20 quarters commencmg January 2020
and-interest is charged at a fixed rate.

Group and parent company:

M

(i)

(iii)
(iiii)

A loan of $46.3m, which was fully repaid in June 2021. This loan was repayable over 28 quarters commencing
September 2011 with a review after 5 years in June 2016 and interest was charged at LIBOR + margin. During
2014, $16m was converted into a new sterling luan of £9.9m. The loan of £9.9m was repayable over 16 quarters
commencing December 2013 with a review in June 2016 and interest was charged at LIBOR + margin. The reviews
in June 2016 were completed and the remaining loan balances of £5.2m were repayable over 20 quarters. -

A loan of £15.0m, which was fully repaid in June 2021. This loan was repayable over 28 quarters commencing
September 2011 with a review after 5 years in June 2016 and interest was charged at LIBOR + margin, The review
in June 2016 was completed and the remaining loan balance of £4.9m was repayable over 20 quarters.

A loan of £7.5m. This loan is repayable over 20 quarters commencing January 2020 and interest is charged at a
fixed rate.

A loan of £7.5m. This loan is repayable over 20 quarters commencing January 2020 and interest is charged at
LIBOR + margin. In line with changes in the banking industry, post year end this loan agreement was amended to
charge interest at SONIA + margin.

The above loans are secured against assets within the group.
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18
®

(©)

Borrowings (continued)
Group and parent éompany:

(i) A loan of £987,581, payable over 36 months commencing July 2018 with interest charged at a fixed rate. Thls loan
. was-procured in order to acquire an lntanglble asset and is secured on the asset to which it relates.

Parent company: ‘ : .
(i) £522,988,482 (2020: £278,568,154) is owed to group undertakings. Interest is charged at LIBOR + rﬁargin, and the
loans are repayable on demand. In line with changes in the banking industry, during the year the basis for charging

interest migrated from LIBOR to Bank of England Base rate (and other short-term rates in respect of other currencies).

(ii) £178,570 (2020: £535,730) is owed to the Almac Employee Benefit Trust. Interest is charged at UK base rate plus
1%. The loan is being repaid-in quarterly insta'lments which commenced in March 2015.

(iii) £3,480,000 (2020: £4,350,000) is owed to Galen Limited. Interest is charged at LIBOR plus a margin. The loan is

" being repaid in annual instalments which commenced in August 2018.

)

(@

Group and parent company: £Nil (2020: £178,590) is owed to The McClay Foundation. Interest was charged at UK base
rate plus 1 %. The loan was being repaid in quarterly instalments from December 2014.

" Finance leases are secufed on the assets to which they relate.

The fair value of both current and non- -current borrowmgs equals their carrymg amount as the impact of dlscountmg is not
sngmflcant

-For the purposes of IFRS 9 “Financial instruments”, the financial liabilities noted above are measured at amortjsed cost.

The carrying amount of the group’s and the parent company’s borrowings is denominated in the following currencies:

. Group. Lo Company
2021 2020 2021 : 2020
, , £ £ £ £
UK pound sterling 38,025,495 53,392,521 281,183,282 258,670,224
US dollar . . 21,432,798 25,538,388 68,835,390 57,327,149
Euro ' . 9,395,773 . ' 6,518,426 5,745,818 7,199,585
Singapore dollar ) ‘ 1,619,645 - ' - C- -
Japanese yen ' . 1,342,693 - - -
71,816,404 85,449,335 355,764,490 323,196,958
The effective interest rates at the balance sheel date were as follows: . 2021 2020
. : _ ) To %
Bank overdrafts ) . . . ‘ 1.75-2.25 2.00-3.00
Variable rate loans ‘ : . 1.50-2.50 1.10-3.00
Fixed rate loans 2.00 - 4.00 2.00-5.68
Finance leases B < _0.00-13.50 0.00 - 13.50

Lease liabilities arising from IFRS 16 ) ) 2.50-3.50 2.25-2.75
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18 Borrowings (continued)

: Méturity of financial liabilities

The maturity profilé of the carrying.amount of non-current borrowings at 30 September was as follows:

Loans and :
- bank  Finance lease IFRS 16 lease
“overdrafts’  obligations liabilities Total
Group 2021 2021 2021 2021
: , , : £ £ £ £
In more than | year but not more than 2 years 2,236,484 14,585 - . 6,484,089 8,735,158
In more than 2 years but not more than 5 years 10,937,149 9,585 14,516,631 25,463,365
In more than 5 years - - 28,685,630 28,685,630
13,173,633 - 24,170 49,686,350 62,884,153
Loans and < ) )
bank  Finance lease  IFRS 16 lease- .
- overdrafts -obligations liabilities Total
Group 2020 .2020 2020 2020
. . £ - £ £ ) £
In more than 1 year but not more than 2 years 2,174,179 30,162 5,871,456 - 8,075,797
In more than 2 years but not more than 5 years 13,173,634 24,170 14,424,120 27,621,924
In more than 5 years - - 33,165,471 33,165,471
' 15,347,813 54,332 53,461,047 68,863,192
Amounts
) . owed to IFRS 16
Bank and " group lease :
other loans  undertakings liabilities Total
' 2021 12021 2021 2021 -
Company £ £ £ £
In more than 1 year but not more than 2 yeérs 1,418,924 870,000 ) 1,445,157 3,734,081
In more than 2 years but th'rﬁore than 5 years . 9,878,986 1,740,000 4,259,443 15,878,429 .
In more than 5 years . . A - - 9,312,026 9,312,026
11,297,910 2,610,000 15,016,626 128,924,536
Amounts
) owed to
Bank and group - IFRS 16 lease :
other loans  undertakings liabilities Total
2020 . 2020 2020 2020
Company £ : £ £ £
In more than 1 year but not more than 2 years 1,380,873 1,048,570 . . 1,397,882 3;827,,325
In more than 2 years but:not more than 5 years 11,297,910 2,610,000 4,234,008 18,141,918
In more than 5 years - - 10,732,132 10,732,132
12,678,783 3,658,570 16,364,022 32,701,375 '
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18 Botfdwings (continued)

The amounts included in the tables below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of current and non-current borrowings.

Amounts . ' .
owed to Finance - IFRS 16°
Bank and related lease lease .
other loans parties - obligations liabilities Total
- 2021 2021 2021 2021 - 2021
Group ) £ B * - £ £ £
~In less than 1 year . 2,557,658 - 32,313 8,443,196 11,033,167
In more thanl 1 year but not more than 2 years 2,561,599 - 15,492 8,148,983 10,726,074
In more than 2'years but not niore than S years 11,254,855 - 9,888 18,165,803 29,430,546
In more than S years . - . 32,204,161 32,204,161
16,374,112 - 57,693 66,962,143 83,393,948
Amounts. .
. owed to Finance IFRS 16
" Bankand = ‘related lease lease - :
other loans parties obligations liabilities Total
A 2020 2020 2020 2020 © 2020
Group £ £ £ £ £
In less than 1. year 10,794,638 179,327 39,277 8,195,285 19,208,527
"In more than 1 year but not-more than 2 years . 2,557,437 - 32,313 - 7,632,491 10,222,241
In more than 2 years but not more than 5 years 13,817,612 : 25,380 18,180,200 32,023,192
In more than S years ' - - - 38,178,939 38,178,939
27,169,687 179,327 96,970 72,186,915 99,632,899
Amounts Amounts
owed to owed to
Bank and group related IFRS16 lease
other loans undertakings parties liabilities Total
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
Company £ £ £ £ £
In less than 1 year 1,690,545 324,125,055 ° - 1,927,451 327,743,051
In more than 1 year but not more than 2 years 71,695,337 935,820 - 1,904,643 4,535,800
In more than 2 years but not more than 5 years 10,172,028 1,805,820 - 5,361,808 17,339,656
In more than S years . - - - 10,252,078 10,252,078
' 13,557,910 - 19,445,980

326,866,695

359,870,585
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18 Borrowmgs (contmued)

Amounts Amounts
Bank and owed to owedto - IFRS16 ,
- other group © related lease Totai
loans - undertakings = parties liabilities 2020
: S 2020 2020 2020 2020 L
Company . : £ . £ £ £
In less than 1 year ’ 9,562,009 279,907,997 . 179327 1920877 291,570,210
- In more than 1 year but not more than 2 years 1,691,175 1,136,214 o 1,902,069 . 4,729,458
- In more than 2 years but not more than 5 years 11,868,523 _ 2,741,112 T - 5,473,609 20,083,244
In more than 5 S/ears : ) B Coee . - ’ -1 1',993,305 11,993,305
‘ "-23,121,'707 283,785,323 179,327 21,289,860 328,376,217
19 Trade and other payables ‘ : C

' o : ' Group ' Company
2021 - 2020 2021 - 2020
_ . £ . £ ‘£ - £
Trade peyables - ' . 33,985,037 - 31,697,690 2,963,553 1,282,713
Amounts owed to group undertakings (note 31) - ' - 11,543,793 © . 11,501,430
" Other tax and social security ~ . 4793643 6606062 - 666277 < 1446572
Other creditors . . 8349725 8936914 L .
Accruals and deferred income ) 83,_510,943 80,208,593 6,821,349 9,196,816
130,639,348 127,449,259 21,994,972 ' 23,427,531

The fair values of trade and other payables are not materially different from their carrying values as the impact of discounting is
.not significant. There is no material difference between the amounts shown above and the total contractual undiscounted cash
flows of trade and other payables.

For the purposes of IFRS 9 “Fmancxal instruments” the financial liabilities noted above are classified as measured at amortised
cost. : .

The group has recognised the following habllmes relatmg to contracts w1th customers (these are all mcluded with deferred
income):

2021 - 2020 .
‘ . £ £
" Contract liabilities recognised at start of the year Co 13,659,889 - 13,534,354
Amounts invoiced in prior years recognised as revenue in the current year (11,362,740)  (9,871,079)
Amounts invoiced in the current year which will be recognised as revenue in later years 15,296,323 9,996,614

Balance at the end of the year B ' ~ _ -17,593,472 13,659,889,

Contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as revenue within 12 months of the year end.
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20 Deferred iﬁcomg

[y

Group Company
Government and other grants £ £
At 1 October 2019 _ 16,269,150 1,355
Capital and other grants received during the year 4,031,698 . -
Released to the income statemenit (2,168,698) . (612)
Exchange adjustment - (293,645) -
At 1 October 2020 17,838,505 743
Capital and other grants received during the year 3,358,236 . -
Released to the income statement (2,318,559) - (297)
. Exchange adjustment 104,142 .
At 30 September 2021 18,982,324 446
-. The mat.urity profile of the carrying amount of deferred income, at 30 Séptember‘was as follows:
Group . Company
- 2021 2020 2021 2020
g £ i £
Less than one year ' 2,249,296 2,248,534 . 298 298
In moré than 6ne year but not more than two years 2,024,189 1,921,326 148 A 298
In more than two years but not more fhari five years 6,491,957 -+ 6,128,956 o 147
Later than five years 8,216,882 . . 7,539,689 . o .
| 18,982,324 17,838,505 446 743
21 Other non-current liabilities : )
: Group’ ) Company
2021 . 2020 2021 2020
‘ £ £ £ ) £
Accruals 15,383,139 12,126,039 2,023,584 1,480,436
Maturity of non-current liabilities
The maturity profile of the carrying amount of non-éurrent liabilities at 30 September was as follows:
' Grpup Comi)any. o
‘ 2021 2020 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
In more than one year but not more-than two years - 6,073,882 3,987,008 1,042,917 667,404
Tn more than two years but not more than five years 9,029,150 8,128,450 980,667 813,032,
In moré than five years 280,107 10,581 .
15,383,139 12,126,039 1,480,436

2,023,584

There is no material difference bétween the amounts shown above and the total contractual undiscounted cash flows of other

non-current liabilities.
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22 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Group Company
Private medical claims provision o . £ £
At 1 October 2019 - ' - : 3,225,066 -
Charged to the income statement . : 3,908,125 : - .
Utilised during the year - - A ) . (3,099,087) A -
E);change adjustment ' ’ . A . (156,275) B -
' At 30 September 2020 ) . ) 3,877,829 . -
Charged to the income statement » 1,281,481 , .
Utilised during the year ' ’ (1,483,259) ' -
Exchange adjustment : : N - (172,348) . -
- At:30 September 2021 . . ’ '3,503,703 .-
See also contingent liability disclosgd in note 28.
23  Share capital and share premium
- Group and company o - " B 2021. ‘ 2020
Authorised share capital - : ) £ £
139,999,999 (2020: 139,999,999) ordinary A shares of £1 each - 139,999,999 139,999,999
10,000,000 (2020: 10,000,000) class B non-voting ordinary shares of £1 each 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
I (2020:1) founder share of £1 : . E o o
' 150,000,000 150,000,000

The ordinary A shares, B shares rank pari passu in all respects and enjoy the same rights and privileges save that the B shares
are non-voting. The Founder share has veto rights in a number of areas; however it does not receive an economic benefxt from
the group. All shares rank in full for dlvxdends .

: Shares of £1 each
- : Class B

Group and company Ordinary A ordinary Founder Total
Allotted and fully paid and share capital , £ £ £ £
At 1 October 2020 ‘ 4 13,534,728 1,761,583 1 15,296,312
At 30 September 2021 - . 13,534,728 1,761,583 1 15,296,312

Share
) . premium
Group and company ) £
At 1 October 2020 . : - 173,911,921

At 30 September 2021 ) A ) 173,911,921
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24 Employee benefit trusts

Under IFRS, an entity that controls an employee benefit trust is required by SIC 12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”
to consolidate that Trust. Accordingly the assets, liabilities and transactions of the Almac Employee Benefit Trust and the Almac
Offshore Employee Benefit Trust have been consolidated in these group financial statements. The Trusts are discretionary trusts
established for the benefit of employees and former employees of the parent company, including directors, and may be used to
meet obligations under the direction of the Trustees. At 30 September 2021 no shares of the parent company were held by the
Trusts. ' :

25  Cash generated from operations

. Group ‘"Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
_ £ £ C g £
Profit/(loss) before income tax ) : 80,782,394 63,549,574 (9,145,442) (5,837,179) -
Adjustments for: ' . . : o ' ‘
Finance income o (9254) (14,060)  (7,199,926) (9,356,442) -
Finance costs : 9,370,422 4,398,009 15,125,971 13,055,605
Depreciation of property, plant and equibrﬁent 22,215,816 21,111,524 - 1,198,440 1,344,790
Depreci'ation of right of use assets 6,376,568 7,176,992 " 389,732 399,377
Amortisation of'intangible assets 8,180,234 8,530,765 633,772 619,256
Provision against amounts owed by group undertakings - - 3,822,433 4,075,399
Research and development credit . o (5,863,441) - (4,830,077) - -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 83,876 - 2,034 ' -
Release of capital grant . ! ' (2,318,559) (2,168,698) 97y . (612)
‘Movement in inventories . 2862314 (1,135,709) . -
Movement in trade and other receivables ’ (18,505,057) (I2,705,73 1y (15,576) (296,391)
Movement in trade and other payables 8,242,600 24,648,720 (705,487) . 57,563
Net cash generated from operations : 111,417,913 108,561,309 4,105,654 4,061,366
Net debt - Group
: . T Other  Related
Bank loans loans party ~ Leases Subtotal Cash Total
' £ £ £ £ £ . £ ' £

Netdebtasat I October ¢ 0y 199y (812,174) (446445)  (101,738)  (8,164,549)  11400.669 3,245,120

2019
(l?ﬁgﬁgijeg on adoption . - - (64,118,599)  (64,118,599) - (64,118,599)
Cash flows (13,503300) 606,428 267,855 9396269  (3,232,748) 61,661,623 58,428,875
Acquisitions — leases _ . - - (2,611,326) (2,611,320) - (2,611,326)
Other changes 20,729 - - (2201,749)  (2,181,020) . (521,205) (2,702,225)
Net debt as at 30 ' .

f)eclz;i';lrbgf)ggzo and 1 50,286,763) - (205,746) (178590) (59.637.143)  (80,308,242) 72,550,087 (7,758,155).
Cash flows 4934495 205746 178,590 8,179,226 13,498,057 43,554,614 57,052,671
Acquisitions - leases o . - (4529,109)  (4,529,109) - (4,529,109)
Other changes * 5050 ; - (405,264) (399.314)  (1,093,653) (1,492,967)
Net debt as at 30

September 2021

(15,346,318) - - (56,392,290)  (71,738,608) 115,011,048 >43,27'2,440
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25 Cash generated from operations (conﬁinued)

Net debt — Company

Bank loans Other loans Intercompany Related party ' Leases ) Subtotal . © Cash Total
£ £ £ £ . £ £ £ £
Net debt as at | i ] . ) ' : .
October 2019 » (6,102,565) (812,174) (257,932,274) (446,445) - (265,293,458) (11,700,848) (276,994,306)
Recognised on . . . : ’ o '
adoption of [FRS {6 - ) - ‘ - - (18,221,778) F18,221,778) - (18,221,778)
Cash flows . (10,520,lj5) . 606,428 (25,521,610) 267,855 1,129,302 . (34,038,160) 40,994,968 -+ 6,956,808
Acquisitions — : . . ) . ' '
leases - ) - - R (55,641) (55,641) ‘ - . - (55,641)
Other changes ~ - - - - (587,921) ©(587,921) - (587,921) )
Net debt as at 30 X ' . : . .
September 2020 and (16,622,700)  (205,746) (283,453,884) © o (178,590) (17,736.038) - (318,196,958) 29,294,120 (288,902,838)
1 October 2020 ° : g : o o
Cash flows L 3,943,917 . 205,746 © 1 (43,193,168) ’ 178,590 ‘ 1,886,050 . " (36,978,865) . 38,088,229 . 1,109,364
. Acquisitions - ) ) . ) . i B :

leases b T - o (38'1_43) (38,|43)‘ o (38,143)
Other changes * - - - . - . (550,524) ’ (550,524) - . - - (550,524)
Net debt as at 30 . . .
September 2031 (12,678,783) . (326,647,052) e (16,438,655) (355,764,490) 67382349 (288,382,141)

*Qther changes includes interest charged in the financial year.
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26 Pensron commltments

The.group operates a defined contribution scheme for employees whereby the assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the group in an mdependently administered scheme Pension costs for the defined contribution scheme were as
follows: : :

| ' 2021 © - 2010
Group * o o o o £ £
Defined contribution scheme’ , : ' 8,715,100 7,943,844

.Amounts owed to the pension scheme as at 30 September 2021 totalied £1,432,712 (2020: £1 ,274,834).

_ 2021 . 2020
Company . : : K ’ . £ o £
- Defined contribution scheme : T 843,300 771,946
.Amounts owed to the pension scheme as at 30 September 2021 totalled £150,249 (2020 £129, 101)
27  Capital and other financnal commltments
Contracts placed for future expenditure'not.provided in the financial statements:
o ' 2021 2020
Group ) , . : £ £
Property, plant and equipment . . Co . 19,228542 | 7,402,422
Intangible assets, ) . o . 1,384,261 1,621,402
o o 2021 2021
- Company . . ) ' ' £ £
Property, plant and equipment - > . o ' \ 400,436 671,133
Intangible assets o ' o ' 1,382,635 -

28 - Contingencies

There exists a contingent liability to repay certain capital and revenue grants received from Invest Northern Ireland (formerly
the Industrial Development Board) if future employment levels fall below specified levels. The directors-do not anticipate any .
repayment falling due under.the terms on which the grants were received.

The company bank borrowmgs are secured by certain fixed and flvating charges over the property assets and undenakmgs of
the company :

The group operates a self-insured medical plan in respect of its employees in the United States of America. The group has
made a provision in these financial statements for employee medical claims which are known at the balance sheet date as well
as those which have been incurred but have not yet been reported (subject to an actuarial valuation). The group has a stop-loss
insurance policy in place which limits individual claims to $325,000.
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Notes tp the financial statements for the year ended 30 September '2021 (continued) -

The group operates a phantom share scheme whereby share awards are granted to directors and senior management employees.
The share award is granted for £nil consideration and is conditional on the director or employee continuing in employment for a
period of three years from the date the share award is made, which is the first of January following the financial year end. The
group accounts for these share awards as cash-settled share-based payments which are measured at fair value and recognised as
an expense in the income statement with a corresponding increase in liabilities (within accruals). The fair value is recognised
over the period during which employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards, subject to the group’s estimate of the
number of awards which will lapse due to employees leaving the group prior to vesting. The total émount recognised in the
income statement as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual amount of awards that are expected to vest, except where

forfeiture is due to employee s termination of contract. -

"

Share awards are exercnsable from the first of January, three years following the award date. The share award is exercisable at
the share price at the end of the financial year when the share is exercisable and all share awards are cash settled.

_ The fair value of each share award granted-and the assumptions used in the calculation are as follows:

30 September 2020

Grant date 4 ‘ o - 30 September 2021
Share price at grant date ‘ S £1.300 © £1.023
Number of employees ' o ‘ ‘ ' . 107 - - 111
‘Share awards ~ ‘ : , : 1,753,534 2,109,466
Vesting peﬁod (years) . . - 4*. 4%
~ Option life (years) . . . ’ 4 4
' -Expected life (years) - ST ' "4 4
' Fair value : - - ' B £1.300 £1.023

*The vesting periodis four years Wthh is made up of the three years from the date of issue plus the year of servxce incurred in

order to be eligible for the award

The weighled average fair value of share awards graimed during the year was £1.300 (2020: }.‘1.023)‘

Movements in the number of share awards outstanding are as follows:

- 2021 2020
] Number ‘Number
Outstanding at 1 October : . 5,729,595 5,684,653
Granted _ - ' ' 1,753,534 2,109,466
Forfeited , ‘ , S (56,643) (123,078)
Exercised : ‘ o (1,709,656 (1,941,446)
Outstanding at 30 September ’ . ' 5,716,830 5,729,595
Exercisable on 1 January 2022/2021 ) ' ) 1,938,738 1,696,221

The weighted average share price of share awards exercised in the year was £1.300 (2020: £1.023).
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29 Share-based payments (contmued)

Share awards outsfanding at the end of the year have the following expiry dates:

v 2021 2020
o ‘ . Number Number
2021 - L ‘ .- 1,696,221
2022 ' ‘ 1938738 - 1958689
2023 ' ' : 2,055,156 2,074,685
2024 , ‘ _ 1,722,936 -

" The total expense recogmsed in the income statement was £6,337,336 (2020: £2,549,015). The liability at 30 September 2021
was £9,940,397 (2020 £5,953,142).

30 Ultimate controlling party and related party transactions

Due to a split of ownership and control over the group there is not considered to be an ultimate parent undertaking.

Almac Group Limited, a eompany incorporated in Northern Ireland, nls the parent undertaking of the largest and smallest group
of undertakings of which the company is a member and for which group financial statements are prepared. The registered ofﬁce

of Almac Group Limited is Almac House 20 Seagoe Industrial Estate, Cralgavon BT63 5QD.

At the balance sheet date, the ultimate controlling parties are A D Armstrong, S Campbell, C Hayburn and J W Irvine.
The McClay Foundation is a related party due to common directors.

Companies under common control are also related parties under IAS 24. Transactions entered into during the year with such
parties are as follows:

. ‘ ) 2021 - 2020
Group - - ' £ £
Interest receivable from / (payable to) related parties 737 (5.366)
Amounts owed to related parties ‘ ’ . _' - (178,590)

2021 . 2020
Company o . . ' ' £ £
Sales to group undertakings ‘ T 44,655,308 ‘ 41,085,920
) P . .
Purchases from group undertaki‘ngg . . (630,811) _ (552,043)

" Interest receivable from group undertakings . . 6,761,562 - 8,882,858
Interest payable to group undertakings o (7,074,323) (7,804',533)
Amounts owed by group undertakings (*) ‘ ' 251,576,645 . 266,057,266
Amounts o“;ed to gréup undertakings ‘ : (338,19.0,845) (294,955,314) -
Amounts owed to related parties ' ' ' - (178,590)
Group relief receivable/(payable) ) : . - 1,731,618 644,211

Details 6f amounts owed by and to related parties are disclosed in notes 16, 18 and 19 respecﬁvely. Details of interest payable
and receivable on related party balances are disclosed in note 6.

(*) Amounts owed by group undertakings are stated after provisions of £40,002,170 (2020: £36,179,737).



